
Audit and Accounts Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 26 January 2022 

 
TIME:  2.30 pm 

 
VENUE: The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 

5DA. 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 

2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FOR FACE TO 

FACE MEETINGS FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2021 

Please see the attached guidance document on the arrangements for 

the return to face to face meetings. This guidance includes 
information about the venue, the control measures in place, COVID19 

lateral flow tests and travel options. 
 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

 2PM - FOR MEMBERS ONLY : TRAINING - EVALUATING THE 

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, INCLUDING A 
BRIEFING ON THE SELF ASSESSMENT EXERCISE - DAVID 

SMITH/SIMON BLECKLY  

 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   The Committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the 

inclusion of the items  listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.  

 

 

3   Declarations of Interest.  

 

 

4   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous 

meeting.  
 

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 October 2021. 

 

(Pages 5 - 12) 

5   Matters Arising  

 

 

6   External Audit Contract Procurement and Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA)  

(Pages 13 - 20) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Report of the Chief Finance Officer (Joanne Hardman) and Head of 

Internal Audit (Simon Bleckly) 
 

7   Provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23  

 

Report of the Lead Member for Finance and Support Services and the 

Chief Finance Officer. 
 

(Pages 21 - 28) 

8   2021/22 Strategic Risk Register Update  

 

Jacquie Russell (Assistant Director Strategy and Change) and Debbie 

McCarron (Data Compliance Manager) 
 

(Pages 29 - 48) 

9   Internal Audit Progress Report  

 

Internal Audit Manager – David Smith 

 

(Pages 49 - 62) 

10   External Auditors Audit Committee Progress Update  
 

Update from the External Auditors - Mazars 
 

(Pages 63 - 76) 

11   The work programme  

 

(Pages 77 - 80) 

12   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 1  

 

 

13   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 
information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 

Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 Members are recommended to agree the necessary 

resolutions excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of this item. At the time this agenda is published no representations 

have been that this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 

 

14   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 2  

 

 

15   Date of Next Meeting  

 

Wednesday 23 March 2022 at 2pm (1:45pm for members) 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 

Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 



Last updated 04.01.22 

Face to face public meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic 

Centre from 1st September 2021 
 
Face to face public meetings have been held in The Salford Suite in the Old Town 
Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.   
 

The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings 
and still comply with social distancing and Covid safe guidelines, as advised by 
Public Health.  
 

Everyone involved has worked hard to ensure that the transfer of face to face 
meetings to the Salford Suite will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your 
safety is our upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and 
effective decision making.  
 

This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we are 
all asked to adhere to ensure everyone is kept safe and the city council’s decision 
making remains legally compliant. 
 

1. General guidelines for meetings 
 

a. It should be possible to hold most of the decision making meetings back in the 
Salford Suite but it will not be possible to hold the meetings of the Council, 
Licensing and Safety Regulatory Panel (taxis) and Planning and 
Transportation Regulatory Panel, due to the number of people required to 
attend and so they will remain at 100 Embankment for the foreseeable future.  
There may also be times, when the date and times of meetings clash, that one 
may need to move to 100 Embankment. 
 

2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings  

It is very important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when 

attending meetings.   

a. Where to enter the building 
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.  
You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from 
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.   
For evening meetings, if you cannot get access via the main front door please 
walk around to the main Reception and press the out of hours buzzer to gain 
access.  

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Annex



Last updated 04.01.22 

 

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings   

• Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so 
access to rooms and space is very limited.  Most of the building will remain 
closed and many contractors will be working on site. 

• Other members of the public are also using the building to access the 
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for 
them to do so safely, so there will be no access to the Registrars corridor 
and the ceremony room’s corridor during the day. 

 

c. Toilets  

• The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.  

The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of 

the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite.   

• The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an 

officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so 

members can use it.  Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on 

the day.  
 

3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-secure manner  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

• A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the 
meeting and on the morning of the meeting.  You can order or collect a home 
testing kit by: 
- Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home  
- Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point  

 

• If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting 
under no circumstances should you attend.  If your lateral flow test is 
positive you will then need to book a complementary PCR Test and follow 
national guidance on self-isolating.  
 

• Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you 
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if 
they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a 
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions. 

  

• You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if 
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending 
face to face meetings.  
 

b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite 

• Please arrive at least 20 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space.  

• The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the 
principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are asked to regularly 
wash and sanitise your hands, wear a face covering unless you hold a 

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/rapid-testing-sites-in-salford/


Last updated 04.01.22 

medical exemption, and please maintain a social distance (1.5m) from others 
at all times whilst attending meetings.  

• You may remove your mask when you are seated but please wear your face 
covering when moving around the room or when on the corridor. 

• Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum 
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above. 
 

4. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

The guidance listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment. 

b. Travelling to 100 Embankment 

• There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can 
be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options. 

• It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations 

• The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100 
Embankment 

• There is secure cycle storage and showers on site. 
 

c. Parking at 100 Embankment 

• There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North) 
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in 
advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-
north/).  Cleminson Street remains the closest Salford City Council parking.  

• Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.  

Page 3

https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        1 
 

Audit and Accounts Committee 

In person meeting in The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre. 

 

Date: 27th October 2021 

Meeting commenced: 2:10pm 
Meeting ended: 3:35pm 

Present:  

 Councillor Robin Garrido:  In the Chair 

 Councillors: Roger Jones, Gina Reynolds, Alex Shama, Philip Tresadern,  

 Co-opted Members: Edoardo Bucci,  

Public:  None 

Officers:  

 Simon Bleckly – Head of Internal Audit  

 Joanne Hardman – Chief Finance Officer  

 Karen Murray - External Auditor Mazars 

 David Smith – Internal Audit Manager 

 Tony Thompstone – Strategic Finance Manager 

 Liz Wright - Senior Democratic Services Officer 

1. Apologies for absence 

Apologies were received from Councillor Mike Pevitt, Vittoria Bugana, Councillor Bill Hinds, 
Councillor John Walsh and Chris Hesketh (Head of Financial Management) and David Wilcock 

(Interim City Solicitor). 
 

2. The committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion of the items listed 
in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda 

It was confirmed that all items were Part 1 items and there would be no requirement to move to 

Part 2. 

 

Resolved: That the items included on the agenda for this meeting be approved. 

3. Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interests. 
 

4. To approve, as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting 
 

Resolved:  That the committee approved, as a true and correct record, the minutes of the 

previous meeting held on 29th September 2021. 
 

5. Matters arising 

There were no matters arising. 

6. Annual Governance Statement  

It was reported that there was an amendment required to the ASG as presented at the meeting 
as there was still a reference to the ICJC.  There had been no other changes required since 

the July meeting.  The updated copy of the AGS was circulated during the meeting and 
members considered and approved the amendment. 

 
Resolved:  That, the Committee approved the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with the 

amendment to remove the reference to the ICJC. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        2 
 

 
7. Audit Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The Chair of the Audit and Accounts Committee introduced the report and highlighted the 

recommendations to delegate powers to the Chair and the Chief Finance Officer (CFO). 

The CFO (Joanne Hardman) introduced the report and highlighted the following. 

 There was agreement in general with the external auditor’s findings in the report and have 

made amendments to the unaudited version of the 2020/21 statement of accounts 

accordingly. 

 The audit findings were highlighted, including that there were no unadjusted misstatements 

and the adjusted misstatements were outlined.  The number of amendments were shown in 

Table 1 and Table 2 in Appendix A. 

 The pension liabilities were highlighted. 

The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and the following 

were raised. 

 The Chair asked for further explanation about the assets recording and Covid-19 grants. 

Members were directed to the Covid grants section of the report. 

 The Chair asked about the pension liabilities and the outstanding judgement.  The External 

Auditor explained that it related to a technical accounting issue and how the council was 

accounting for it.  The issue had been referred to the External Auditors (EA) technical team 

who are reviewing the contract between the council and Salford Royal Foundation Trust.  

The council’s Finance Team had provided all the information that had been requested for 

this investigation to be completed.  The CFO confirmed they were confident with the 

council’s accounting treatment of the pension liabilities. 

 The Chair asked if the accounting treatment of the pension liabilities had been the same as 

in previous years and if so why was this being raised this year when it had not been in 

previous years.  The EA confirmed that it was being treated the same by the council but the 

amount of money involved was significant and also because the local care organisation had 

now accounted for it in a different way than previously and the EA was awaiting 

confirmation on how it should be treated under the regulations. 

 A member asked if pension liabilities could change year on year.  It was confirmed that it 

was not unusual but the change this year was significant.  The issue related to the TUPE of 

staff and the pension liabilities had increased since the TUPE had taken place.  The EA 

commented that this could translate into a large liability and so needed to be resolved. 

 A member asked how this liability could potentially impact on the council budget.  It was 

confirmed that the pension liability for the staff employed by the council (under the 

accounting rules) did no impact on the revenue account.  If it was found that the same 

accounting rules could not be used for the pension liabilities for the TUPEd staff not 

employed by the council, then it would impact on the revenue budget.  The CFO reported 

that the council was not currently treating it any differently to any other pension guarantees.  

The issue had been considered in previous years and discussions had been held between 

council, Salford care organisation and the EA but the liability had substantially increased 

this year. 

 A member asked about the usable and unusable reserves.  It was explained that the 

unusable reserves were used for accounting technicalities.  The unusable reserves did 

increase year and this was in some part due to the issues with the Collection Fund.   It was 

explained that £30M of the useable reserves related to the Covid-19 grants and would be 

Page 6



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        3 
 

spent or returned and that useable reserves would then return to a more normal level after 

the pandemic  There was a detailed schedule of the reserves for members to consider and 

the members were offered a further discussion on the reserves should this be required.   

  A member asked about the error reported for Property, Plant and Equipment.  It was 

explained that the correction referred to a mistake with the depreciation valuation on 

properties during the previous year and this had been adjusted this year.  The EA had 

queried it and it was corrected this year.     

The Chair read out the recommendations from the report and the members of the committee 

approved them. 

Resolved:  That, the Committee considered the contents of the auditor’s Audit Findings report 

and this complementary report and,  

a. Authorised the changes to the statement of accounts outlined in the audit findings report. 

b. Authorised the committee chair to sign the statement of responsibilities within the statement 

of accounts following the completion of the outstanding audit work if there is no material 

impact upon the financial position of the council. 

c. Noted the representations to be made by the chair of the audit and account committee and 

the Chief Finance Officer (Appendix B) 

d. Delegated authority to the Chief Finance Officer to agree any further changes to the 

statement, should they be required. Any such changes will be reported to the Committee 

Chair for approval if there is no material impact upon the financial position of the council. 

Where any change would have a material impact upon the council’s position it is anticipated 

that members of this Committee would wish to meet to consider the Audit Findings report, 

the council’s response and associated implications. 

 

8. External Auditors Update  and Annual Audit Letter 

The representative from the external auditors (Karen Murray) presented the report and 

highlighted the following. 

 The report included: 

o The executive summary 

o Status of the audit 

o Audit approach 

o Significant findings 

o Internal control recommendations 

o Summary of misstatements 

o Value for money 

 The risks identified at the planning stage for the audit were the risk as reported on and no 

further risks had been identified. 

 If there were any further material changes to the Audit Completion Report a further meeting 
of the committee would be called so members could consider the changes. 

 The accounts presented had been of good quality and had been completed under very 

challenging conditions and remotely. The Finance Team relied on information from all parts 
of the council and some areas did not always provide them with information in a timely 

manner. 

 In terms of the management override of controls, the EA had looked in detail at the values 

in the accounts and items outside normal business and how managers applied judgements 
and no issues were identified. 

 The accounting of the pension liabilities was still to be resolved. 

Page 7



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        4 
 

 The EA was satisfied with the judgement of the accounts. 

 There were no issues found with the shareholding in the Airport. 

 There were no difficulties encountered in carrying out the audit and no objections or issues 

raised by the public. 

 IT issues were highlighted. 

 The depreciation issue had been previously discussed. 

 There were only two amendments required by the EA and this was a low number, which 
underlined the quality of the accounts. 

 The Value For Money (VFM) judgement was new for 2021 and a commentary had been 
issued and not a judgement.  There were no issue highlighted and a full report would be 

provided in the near future. 
 

The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and the following 

were raised. 

 A member asked about the increased valuation of the Airport shareholding.  It was 

explained that there was a joint valuation report provided for all the Greater Manchester 

(GM) Authorities.  The EA had reviewed the approach used in the report and were satisfied 

with the report. 

The Chair commented that it was pleasing to hear and read the comments about the work of 

the Finance Team and thanked the EA for the detailed audit report. 

Resolved:  That, the Committee noted the reported.  

9. Internal Audit Progress Report 

The Internal Audit Manager (David Smith) introduced the report and highlighted the following. 

 The report outlined for members the activities undertaken and resources utilised during the 

reporting period and the status of any ongoing work. 

 Table 1 detailed the audit reports issued and the actions agreed (and their priority) and the 

level of assurance for each report.  There had been eight reports issued during this period. 

 There were a couple of reports where limited assurances had been given and members 

had received more details relating to these specific reports in the confidential committee 

summaries. 

 School audits were discussed.  There had been a full audit programme for schools in line 

with what happened pre-pandemic and two school audits had been completed to date. 

 It was reported that a lot of work had already been undertaken by the school in response to 

the audit of Moorfield Primary School and there were no significant concerns.  The Post 

Implementation Review (PIR) for St Thomas’ RC Primary School showed positive progress.   

 The process for school audits was highlighted and the collaboration with the Governor 

Services team was highlighted, which included feeding into the governor newsletters and 

work was planned to update the web pages for schools.   

 Members were directed to Table 2 in the report that showed the programme for the audit 

plan. 

 The Audit Team were involved in a number of squads and it was reported that positive 

feedback had been received so far from the Homes England Affordable Housing 

Programme. 

 The pandemic was still impacting on the capacity of the team, however the attendance of 

staff in the audit team was good. 

Page 8



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        5 
 

 In terms of internal investigations and counter fraud, it was reported that three issues had 

been raised but there were no open investigations at this time. 

 The audit team continued to be represented on North West Internal Audit Group sub 

groups, sharing good practice in audit across the region.  The Internal Audit Manager was a 

member of CIPFA’s North West Audit Risk and Governance Group, which organises 

training and development events for public sector auditors within the region.  The Head of 

Internal Audit attends the North West Chief Audit Executive Group meetings, was a 

member of the Local Authority Chief Auditors Network and chairs the Fighting Fraud and 

Corruption Locally Operational Group. 

The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and the following 

was raised. 

 A member raised their concern about Welfare Rights/Advice Service and the impact of the 

pandemic and the uptake of the service.  It was explained that capacity had been increased 

with rising demand but the council was being challenged to answer the question What do 

you want the service to provide?, and then to respond with an appropriate business case. 

 

Resolved:  That, the Committee thanked the Internal Audit Manager for the report and noted 

the report. 
 

10.  Covid-19 Business Grants – Overview 

The Internal Audit Manager introduced the report and highlighted the following. 

 The report gave an overview of the 19 grants over the last 18 months and the council’s 
activity to support them and included: 
o Small business grants and retail, hospitality and leisure grant fund:  £44.5M - 3,808 

grants distributed to date. 
- Small business grant fund:  Small business rate relief. 

- Retail, hospitality and leisure grant fund: cash grants. 
o Local Authority discretionary grants: £2.15M - 332 grants distributed to date. 
o Local restrictions support grants (businesses that remained open): £1.88M - 705 grants 

distributed to date. 
o Local restrictions support grants (businesses required to close): £10.2M - 7210 grants 

distributed to date. 
o Local restrictions support grants (businesses required to close on a national basis): 

£7071 - 8 grants distributed to date. 

o Local restrictions support grants (Closed business lockdown payment): £6.5M – 1404 
grants distributed to date. 

o Restart grants:  £10.15M - 1378 grants distributed to date. 
o Christmas support payments: £95,000 – 95 grants distributed to date. 
o Additional restriction grants: £7.87M – 5981 grants distributed to date. 

 The track and trace isolation payments linked to Universal Credit were separate from these 
grants.    

 The importance of the assurance of the distribution of the grants was highlighted and the 
council maintained an extensive, layered approach to the assurance framework around the 

grant payments in order to minimise the council’s exposure to risk and help ensure accurate 
payments were made.   

 The grants were mostly processed but officers from the council’s business rates  and 

council tax teams and the list of checks and due diligence processes were highlighted.  It 
was reported that there was ongoing financial monitoring and risk assessments and any 

intelligence received was followed up. 

Page 9



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        6 
 

 The national fraud initiative and the national intelligence was discussed.  It had not yet 

revealed anything not already known or revealed for Salford. 
 

The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and the following 

were raised.  

 A member asked how up to date was the information contained in the report and it was 

confirmed it was up to date to the date of the report. 

 The Chair commented that nearly £100M worth of grants had been distributed and checked 

by the Finance Team and Audit Team and this was achieved during the very challenging 
working conditions of the pandemic.  This was a very commendable achievement by all 
involved. 

 A member praised all the officers involved for achieving all this whilst having to work from 
home and having to work to very tight deadlines and to deal with the amount and frequency 

of the grants and all the changes involved in terms of the conditions set by Government for 
the distribution of the grants.   

 
Resolved:  That, the Committee thanked all the staff involved in the work to ensure the very 

effective distribution of the Government grants and payments and noted the report. 

 
11. The work programme 

The members considered the work programme and the following was agreed: 

 If confirmed for this meeting, The Annual Audit letter should be moved to be the first item of 

main business on the agenda followed by The External Auditors  - Audit Committee Update. 

 The Internal Audit Progress Report would not include the school audit report as the update 

had been given at this meeting. 

 It would be reviewed nearer the time if the Report on the proposed budget savings would 

be submitted. 

 It was questioned whether a Standards in Public Life Report would be submitted to this 

meeting.  

Resolved:  That, the Committee agreed the amendments to the work programme as outlined 

above and that the draft agenda would be reviewed nearer the time of the meeting. 

 

12. URGENT BUSINESS – PART 1 

There was no urgent Part 1 business. 
 

13. Date of the next meeting 

The dates of the future meetings listed below were confirmed and it was agreed that members 

would meet from 1:45pm for the 2pm start.   

 Wednesday 26th January 2022 

 Wednesday 23rd March 2022 

 
  

Page 10



Audit & Accounts Committee 27.10.21                                                                                                                                        7 
 

Committee Members attendance 2020/21 

 = present; A = Apologies submitted; Blank = No apologies submitted.  
 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillor/Member Name June 

23.06.21 

July 

30.07.21 

Sept 

29.09.21 

Oct 

27.10.21 

Jan 

26.01.22 

March 

23.03.22 

Councillor R Garrido (chair)       

Councillor M Pevitt A A A A   

Councillor R Jones  A A     

Councillor G Reynolds A      

Councillor A Shama       

Councillor P Tresadern  A     

Councillor R Walker  A     

Councillor John Walsh    A   

Councillor B Hinds (invitee) online A A A   

Vittoria Bugana 
(co-opted member) 

 
 

A A A A   

Edoardo Bucci  

(co-opted member) 
 

 A     

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE 

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 26th JANUARY 2022 

 

TITLE: Options for the appointment of external auditors from 2023/24  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: That the Audit and Accounts Committee considers and 

approves the decision to opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme for the 
period 2023/24 to 2027/28. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to:  

 Inform members of the Committee of the process for appointing local authority 
external auditors for the five years 2023/24 to 2027/28. 

 Obtain the view of the Committee on whether the council should become an opted-
in authority, joining the national auditor appointments framework managed by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments.  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

www.psaa.co.uk - Public Sector Audit Appointments website 

“Timeliness of local auditor reporting on local government in England, 2020” - 
National Audit Office 

“Local auditor reporting on local government in England” - Public Accounts 
Committee July 2021  

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: See appended report. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Melinda Edwards Principal Solicitor 

Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) requires a relevant 

authority to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later 

than 31 December in the preceding financial year.  

Section 17 of the Act gives the Secretary of State the power to make provision, by 

regulations, for certain relevant authorities to have a local auditor appointed on their 

behalf by a body (an 'appointing person') specified by the Secretary of State.  

In that regard, the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (the 

Regulations) make provision for the process through which relevant authorities will 

become subject to these arrangements and the duties / functions of such authorities, 

or of their auditors. Authorities who opt into such arrangements do not need to 

establish an independent auditor panel.  

The decision to become an opted-in authority must be made by full Council, on the 

recommendation of the Audit and Accounts Committee. 

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) is specified as an appointing person under 

the provisions of the Act and regulation 3 of Regulations.  

A formal decision was taken at Council in February 2017 to confirm the proposed 

approach agreed by the Audit & Accounts Committee and the S151 Officer to opt into 

the national auditor appointment scheme. Accordingly, PSAA let five-year audit 

services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, covering audits of the 

accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23.  

PSAA is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the 

next appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a 

procurement for audit services. The council is therefore required to decide whether it 

wishes to opt in again to the national auditor appointment scheme.  

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the council must comply with the requirements of the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) 
failing which the decision may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. 

CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there 
is an auditable reason not to do so.  

 

Page 14



 

The Framework is compliant with PCR and has been procured for local authorities, 

including Salford City Council and other public sector organisations to use. Each 

framework is an overarching agreement through which those named organisations 

can select a service from either a single, or a range of providers by undertaking an 

exercise to call off the services and enter into an individual contract/agreement with 

that provider, according to the terms of the framework agreement. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

If the decision is taken to opt in to the national appointment scheme, the fee setting 
process, including variations, would be managed by PSAA. Given the current 

weaknesses in the public audit market referred to in the report, scale fees are likely 
to increase in future.  In response, the government has committed funding of £15 
million per year towards meeting these increased costs, for the three years from 

2022/23.  

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  

If the decision is taken to opt in to the national appointment scheme, PSAA would be 
responsible for running the competitive tender process and awarding the audit 
contracts.  

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: None  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: None 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Simon Bleckly, Head of Internal Audit, Ext. 01925 442217 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 

Page 15



 

Page 4 

 

INTRODUCTION – UPDATE ON MEASURES TO IMPROVE THE 
EFFECTIVENESS OF LOCAL PUBLIC AUDIT 

The Audit and Accounts Committee received a report at its meeting of 29th September 
2021, providing members with an overview of the Redmond Review into the 

effectiveness of local public audit. The review was commissioned in response to 
concerns about the late completion of local authority audits, reasons for which included 
the increasing complexity of local government accounts, and weaknesses in the public 

audit market causing a shortage of suitably qualified auditors. 

Since the report to Committee on 29th September, there have been a number of 

developments in this area, which are summarised below. 

The government responded in October 2021 to the Public Accounts Committee report 
on “Local auditor reporting on local government in England”. It committed the 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) to playing a stronger 
leadership role in the interim before the new Audit Reporting and Governance Authority 

is established, but also acknowledged that the current capacity issues in the public 
audit market, added to COVID pressures, would mean that “the picture for 2020/21 
audits is expected to be significantly worse than for 2019/20” and that there will not be 

a “return to normality” by 2022. By the 30 September statutory deadline, only 9% of 
local government audits had been completed.  

 
DLUHC wrote to all local authorities on 26 November 2021 summarising the current 
position and the government’s response. The letter highlighted the delays in the 

completion of local audits and acknowledged that 85% of councils had produced a draft 
set of accounts for 2020/21 by the statutory deadline. It also acknowledged the 

pressures placed on finance staff in managing accounts preparation alongside other 
priorities, and emphasised the role that Audit Committees can play in supporting the 
process and ensuring good working relationships between all parties involved. A copy 

of the letter is attached for information as Appendix A to this report. 
 

On 16 December 2021, DLUHC provided a further update on measures to support the 
local public audit market. It is to extend funding provided to local authorities to an 
additional £15 million per annum over the period of the next Spending Review (i.e. the 

three years from 2022/23). This is to cover increased auditing requirements and the 
cost of implementing the Redmond Review recommendations.   

 
Other measures announced by DLUHC include: 

 

 Updated guidance and training to increase the number of Key Audit Partners and 
provide greater technical support to assist in the audit of accounts 

 Providing a decision on whether to make independent members a statutory 
requirement for local authority audit committees 

 Local Government Association to provide further training for audit committee 
members 

 Some technical changes to the Code of Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Notes, 

in order to streamline the auditing process where burdens can be reduced without 
compromising the needs of users 

Page 16



 

Page 5 

 

 Consulting on the introduction of legislation to extend the deadline for publishing 

audited local authority accounts to 30 November 2022 for the 21/22 accounts, with 
the deadline to revert to 30 September for 5 years from 2022/23 

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS FROM 2022/23 

Background 
 

Under the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the Authority is required 

to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year. The Authority has 
three options: 

 

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedures set out in the 
Act. 

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the procedures 
in the Act. 

 To opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body 
designated by the Secretary of State as the “appointing person‟. The body currently 

designated for this role is Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA). 
 

A formal decision was taken at Council in February 2017 to confirm the proposed 

approach agreed by the Audit & Accounts Committee and the S151 Officer to opt in to 
the national auditor appointment scheme. PSAA let five-year audit services contracts 

in 2017 for the first appointing period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 
2022/23.  

 

PSAA is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next 
appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a procurement for 

audit services. The council is therefore required to decide whether it wishes to opt in 
again to the national scheme: if it does so, it will have to inform PSAA of its intention 
by Friday 11 March 2022. The decision to become an opted-in authority should be 

made by Full Council, on the recommendation of the Audit and Accounts Committee 
 

The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each financial 
year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance. The appointed 

auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by electors and has 
powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and statutory 

recommendations. The auditor must act independently of the council and the main 
purpose of the procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is 
sufficiently qualified and independent. 

 
The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting 

Council (FRC) and employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As 
noted below, there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key Audit Partners.  
Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider 

powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course of 
the next audit contract. 

 

Page 17



 

Page 6 

 

Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services they 
are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by third 

parties. 
 

In order to inform this decision-making process, the three options presented above are 
evaluated in more detail below. 

 
Options One and Two – appointment by the council itself, or jointly with other 
authorities 

 
The Authority may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which would 
require the council to:  

 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The 

auditor panel would need to be set up by the Authority itself, and the members of 
the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members as defined by the 

Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding 
current and former elected members (or officers) and their close families and 
friends. This means that elected members will not have a majority input to 

assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a contract for the 
Authority’s external audit. 

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel. 
 

Alternatively, the Act enables the Authority to join with other authorities to establish a 

joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of 
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact 

constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each Authority under 
the Act and the Authority would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the 
appetite for such an arrangement. 

 
Liaison with other councils in the region has not identified any that are considering 

either option one or two for the next procurement process. For the current appointing 
period, there are 499 eligible bodies that are in the national scheme and only 11 that 
opted out (including only two unitary authorities). 

 
Option Three - appointment via the national auditor appointment scheme 

 
PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation incorporated by the Local Government 
Association in 2014 and is responsible for managing the national opt-in scheme for 

auditor appointments. In summary, this scheme provides for: 
 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of the 
five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in formal 

collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with other 
constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria are 
satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its detailed 

procurement strategy; 

Page 18



 

Page 7 

 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and 

managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to scheme 
members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Authority the 
opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed. This is an important element of 

the scheme for the council, as the complex nature of its investments and corporate 
structures will require an auditor with appropriate experience and suitably qualified 
staff; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect 
scale, complexity, and audit risk; and 

 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these have 
been let. 

 
The fee setting and variation process 

 

Under the national scheme, PSAA run a competitive tender process, open to firms 
listed on the ICAEW’s register of Local Auditors to bid for local audit contracts. Tenders 

are assessed on a price: quality basis in line with a Procurement Strategy set out by 
PSAA. For each firm awarded an audit contract, PSAA then put together a balanced 
portfolio of proposed appointments. For the next tender process, the deadline for 

submission of tenders will be in July 2022, with contract awards being made in August 
2022. PSAA will then consult with opted-in bodies on proposed auditor appointments, 

with all appointments being confirmed by 31 December 2022.  
 
Before setting a scale of fees, PSAA consults with opted-in authorities, relevant 

representative associations of local authorities and relevant bodies of accountants. 
The scale fees for individual opted-in authorities are normally based on the scale fee 

for the previous year, reflecting the auditor’s assessment of audit risk and complexity.  
 

Variations from the scale fee should only occur where these factors are significantly 

different from those identified and reflected in the fee for the previous year. PSAA can 
approve proposed variations to the scale fee for an individual opted-in authority, to 

reflect changes in circumstances. It obtains updated fee information from appointed 
auditors, and explanations for any proposed variations from the scale fee, then 
considers the reasonableness of the explanations provided by auditors before 

agreeing to any variation to the scale fee.  
 

Scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to provide the 
auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with supporting 
working papers, within agreed timeframes. PSAA will charge fees for considering 

objections from the point at which auditors accept an objection as valid, or any special 
investigations such as those arising from disclosures under the Public Interest 

Disclosure Act 1998, as a variation to the scale fee. 

CONCLUSION 

The findings from the Redmond review have highlighted the current systemic  

weaknesses in the market for public audit services: the reforms proposed in response 

Page 19



 

Page 8 

 

to the review will take time to come into effect, increasing the risk that the late 
completion of audits will continue for the foreseeable future.  

 
There is limited scope for the council to take action by itself to address this risk: there 

is no appetite amongst other authorities to enter into joint procurement arrangements, 
therefore opting in again to the national auditor appointment scheme is the only viable 
option.  

 

Page 20



 1 

 Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

 

 
 

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

AND THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

 
 

 TO AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
26 JANUARY 2022 

 
 

TITLE: Provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23 briefing

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

It is recommended that the committee notes the content of this report. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This paper sets out the key headlines from the provisional 

local government finance settlement 2022/23. The settlement is a one-year 
settlement only, which means that there is still uncertainty after 2022/23. The overall 

approach has been to roll forward the 2021/22 settlement, with inflationary increases. 
There are some new monies available, although a significant proportion is expected 
by government to be raised via council tax.  

 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
Autumn budget and spending review 2021 (gov.uk) 

Provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23 (gov.uk) 
SIGOMA circulars  

Pixel circulars 
Other documents held in the finance division of Service Reform directorate 
 

 
 

KEY DECISION: YES / NO 

 
 

DETAILS: 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The chancellor announced the Autumn budget and spending review 2021 on 27 
October 2021.  

1.2 Confirmation and further details of the impact on local government were 
announced by the secretary of state DLUHC in the provisional local government 

finance settlement 2022/23 on 16 December 2021. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/autumn-budget-and-spending-review-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2022-to-2023


 2 

1.3 The headlines of the provisional settlement and its impact on Salford are set out 
in section 2.  

1.4 The government’s technical consultation on the provisional settlement ended on 

13 January 2022. Our response to the consultation is summarised in section 3. 

1.5 Final confirmation will follow in the final settlement in February. 

 

2. Headlines  

2.1 General 

The spending review announced some new funding and promised an overall at-
least-inflationary increase of existing funding.  

The provisional settlement rolled forward for another year existing general 
grants and what were originally non-recurrent grants, applying the inflation 
increase and allocating the new funds. 

2.2 Core spending power 

Core Spending Power (CSP) is the government’s favoured measure of local 

authorities’ available resources. It includes funds raised locally in the form of 
taxation and the main general grants payable to local government.  

The spending review announced a headline increase in CSP of £3.5bn (6.9% in 

cash terms). However, a substantial element of this, £1.4bn, is raised from 
assumed increases in council tax rates of 2.99% (see 2.6 below) and average 

increases in the council tax base.  

2.3 Timescale 

The spending review was a three year review and announced a real terms 

increase in funding for every government department. However, the provisional 
settlement is again a one year settlement for local government.  

While additional funding and the continuation of previous non-recurrent funding 

are welcome, the short term nature of the settlement hampers sound financial 
planning and leaves local government in a state of uncertainty about future 

funding.  

2.4 Local government funding 

The spending review announced additional funding of £4.8bn to local 

government over the period 2022/23 to 2024/25. The provisional settlement 
allocated the funding as follows for 2022/23: 

 £822m Services Grant, including compensation for the cost of NI 
increases 

Page 22



 3 

 £636m Social Care Grant  

 £63m Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) inflation 

RSG is increased by inflation only. The “negative RSG adjustment” which does 

not benefit authorities like Salford, continues. 

The lower tier services grant, introduced on a non-recurrent basis in 2021/22, 

continues in 2022/23 at a cost of £111m. 

No allocations have yet been made of supporting families (£40m) and cyber 
security (£12m). 

Impact on Salford: services grant 

Salford will receive £5m in Services Grant. The net benefit to our budget is £2m, 

as £1.9m was built into our previous assumptions and £1.1m is diverted for the 
costs of the NI increase. 

Impact on Salford: social care grant and iBCF 

The increased social care funding will be reflected in the position of our 
integrated fund for health & social care. The value of the increase in social care 

grant is £3.7m, iBCF inflation is £0.4m. 

Impact on Salford: lower tier services grant 

Salford will receive £0.5m from the one-year extension of the lower tier services 

grant. 

2.5 Reform of social care 

Alongside the settlement, DLUHC released an explanatory table analysing the 
£5.4bn previously announced for reform of adult social care. The allocation is 
over three years, with the majority coming in years two and three. 

£1.7bn is to be allocated to improve the wider care system, £3.6bn is to be 
directed to local authorities to deal with charging reform and supporting the local 

care market.  

Of the £3.6bn directed to local authorities, £2.2bn is earmarked for the cap and 
means test, £1.4bn for fair cost of care. The 2022/23 allocation is for £162m on 

the latter. 

 Impact on Salford 

Increased social care funding will be reflected in the position of our integrated 
fund for health & social care. The value of the 2022/23 allocation of funding for 
the fair cost of care is £0.9m. 

2.6 Council tax 

Page 23



 4 

Core council tax thresholds will remain at similar levels to recent years, ie a 
maximum increase of 1.99%. In addition there will be an adult social care 
precept of 1%.  

Where local authorities did not implement the full adult social care precept 
allowed in 2021/22, they can increase council tax charges in 2022/23 for any 

unapplied element. In Salford’s case we applied a precept of 2% in 2021/22 
from the maximum permissible 3%, so have the ability to increase council tax in 
2022/23 by a further 1% of unapplied 2021/22 precept. 

Impact on Salford 

City mayor will make a recommendation on council tax rates to full council 

alongside the budget report in February. 

2.7 Funding review and business rate reform 

Local government has been waiting for confirmation from government on 

several funding reviews, ie the fair funding review, changes to business rates 
retention levels and the anticipated business rates reset. Our medium term 

financial strategy has assumed implementation in 2022/23 (having already 
rolled forwards from previous years). 

Throughout the last year, it became increasingly apparent that the reviews 

would likely be further delayed and, indeed, SR21 made no announcement on 
timing. The provisional settlement confirmed deferral of the business rates reset 

and any changes arising from the long-awaited reviews. It indicated that 
government will consult in the coming months. We are therefore revising our 
forecasts and now expect implementation in 2023/24. 

As members are aware, the council is currently included in a 100% business 
rates retention pilot scheme with all GM districts. Whilst it was anticipated that 
the pilot scheme would end in this financial year, the provisional settlement 

extended it for a further year.  

Impact on SCC 

Pushing back the forecast detrimental impacts of the reviews to 2023/24 has 
improved our business rate position by £4.6m in 2022/23 on a non-recurrent 
basis.   

2.8 New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

In the past few years, the government has made changes to the scheme, eg 

reduction in the period of legacy payments, which have reduced the money 
distributed via NHB. Each year, indications have been that the scheme would 
be brought to a close to be replaced by another mechanism.  

However, while spending review made no announcement on NHB, the 
provisional settlement extended the scheme for 2022/23 with a one-year-only 

new payment plus a legacy payment at an overall cost of £554m. 

Page 24



 5 

Impact on SCC 

Our previous forecasts were of a value of £4.8m arising from redistribution of 
NHB funds on the closure of the scheme plus a legacy payment.  

Unusually for a metropolitan authority, Salford benefits from the NHB 
mechanism, so its continuation for another year benefits us. Salford will receive 

a £1.8m legacy payment and a new (one-year-only) payment of £3.2m for a 
total of £5.0m, ie an improvement of £0.2m on our previously-forecast position.   

2.9 Levelling-up bids 

Alongside the spending review, government announced the first round of 
successful levelling up bids, totalling £1.7bn. 

Impact on Salford 

The first round includes an award to Salford Rise of £13.170m. This is good 
news and a success for Salford, particularly since we were not identified as a 

priority area.  

2.10 Schools funding 

School funding is to increase by an average £1500 per pupil. 

2.11 Business rates multiplier 

The business rates multiplier is set by the government. It is the rate per £1 of 

rateable value, so determines any increase in business rates. The multiplier will 
be frozen in 2022/23. In addition, there will be reliefs granted to a range of 

business sectors. Local authorities will receive compensation for the income 
lost.  

Impact on Salford 

Neutral. 

2.12 Public health grant 

No figures have yet been released for Public Health grants but there is a 

commitment to maintain the grant in real terms, so an inflationary increase 
should be expected. 

3. Consultation 

3.1 Following the announcement of the provisional settlement, government opened 
a technical consultation, asking several questions in relation to the distribution 

of funding. Consultation closed on 13 January 2022. 

3.2 Salford CC’s response to the consultation, while acknowledging the inflationary 
increase and additional funds, raised a number of issues with the provisional 

settlement proposals as follows. 

Page 25



 6 

 3.1% inflation falls short of current forecasts  

 Negative RSG continues to benefit  prosperous councils, reducing 
resources available to other councils 

 Overall, the proposals don’t do enough to address the needs of our 
communities and reverse the reductions imposed through austerity 

 Expecting a substantial proportion of core spending power increase to be 
funded from the council tax payer, rather than national funding, continues to 

place pressure upon council tax payers. 

 There is still no sustainable, recurrent funding solution to address the crisis 

in social care. The non-recurrent nature of much of the settlement makes it 
difficult to plan properly for financial resilience beyond 2022/23 

 Rural services delivery grant  generally benefits prosperous rural areas 

through sparsity factors, whereas density factors have been shown to be 
more meaningful cost drivers 

3.3 Our response called on government to: 

 Increase overall funding  

 Address the social care funding crisis and bring forward proposals to 

mitigate the impact on local tax payers 

 Make progress with the fair funding review, with proper consideration to 

deprivation and need 

 Aim to provide local government with a rolling three year settlement to allow 

for better management of risks to financial resilience 

 

4. CONCLUSION  

4.1 The provisional settlement allows for an inflationary increase and the rolling 
forward of previous funding. It also allocates welcome additional funds, although 
these are not fully sufficient to allow us to address all the needs of Salford 

residents, services and businesses. 

4.2 The various reviews into local government funding have been deferred for 

another year. This has generally benefitted our 2022/23 budget position as we 
had forecasted a detrimental outcome for Salford from these reviews.  

4.3 The one-year nature of the settlement and the deferral of reviews mean that the 

position after 2022/23 is uncertain. While some of the forecast pressures in our 
budget are mitigated in 2022/23, they arise again in 2023/24. 

4.4 The details of the settlement will be incorporated into our financial forecasts to 
inform the budget proposal that will be put before council in February.  

Page 26



 7 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS  

5.1  It is recommended that the committee notes the content of this report. 

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Revenue budget, medium term financial strategy 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

 
Medium in 2022/23 medium; high from 2023/24.  

 
Our prudent financial strategy over recent years means that we are relatively well-

positioned compared to some authorities, and the provisional settlement is better 
than might have been expected. However, it does not resolve some key areas of risk 
for the council: 

 The increasing cost of social care remains a significant risk.  

 The quantum of funding available to local government and the distribution of 

that funding is critical to councils’ delivery of service and financial resilience, 
particularly for councils like Salford, where grants represent a greater 

proportion of overall resources.  

 There remains a high degree of uncertainty about the outcome of funding 

reviews.  

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  
 
Not applicable 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Hesketh 
 
Contained within the body of the report. 

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  
 
Not applicable 

 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Not applicable 

Page 27



 8 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: CHRIS HESKETH x2668 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: None specifically 

Page 28



1 

 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 
or 

Part 2: Closed to the Public – Item No. 

 
 

REPORT OF: Assistant Director, Strategy and Performance 

 
 

TO:  Audit and Accounts Committee 

 

ON:  26 January 2022

 
 

TITLE: Half-year 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register update 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

It is recommended that Audit and Accounts Committee Members: 
 

a) Note the contents of the Half-year 2021/22 Strategic Risk Register 
update attached at Appendix 1. 

 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

Risk Management in Salford City Council is about improving our ability to deliver 
outcomes for the community by managing our threats, enhancing our opportunities 

and creating an environment that adds value to ongoing activities. 
 

The Report attached at Appendix 1 provides Audit and Accounts Committee 
members with a half-year update of the current strategic risks to the delivery of 
Salford’s priorities. These are monitored through Corporate Management Team 

(CMT) and Cabinet Briefing. 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Salford City Council Risk Management Strategy and Process 
2021-22 Strategic Risk Register  

 

KEY DECISION: YES / NO 

 

 
 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

 

DETAILS: 
 

 

1. Background 
 

1.1 Risk management is both a statutory requirement and an 

important part of planning for organisations. 
 

1.2 Risk Management in Salford City Council is about improving our 
ability to deliver outcomes for the community by managing our 
threats, enhancing our opportunities and creating an environment 

that adds value to ongoing activities. By effectively managing our 
risks and opportunities, which is all part of good governance, we 

will be in a stronger position to deliver our objectives, provide 
improved services to the public and achieve value for money. 

 

 
2. Risk Management Update  

 

 

2.1       Since 2001, the council has had a Risk Management Strategy and 

Process in place that describes our approach to risk management 
in Salford.  To make sure that our approach to risk management 

remains robust and current it is considered good practice to 
periodically review our Strategy and Process. As our approach had 
not been reviewed since 2018 these arrangements were reviewed 

and refreshed earlier in 2021.  The updated Strategy and Process 
has been approved by CMT, Cabinet and Audit and Accounts 

Committee and published on the council’s intranet - MyZone. 
 
 

3. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register  

 

 
3.1. It is good governance for the Council to maintain and review a 

register of its strategic risks. Strategic risks are those key, cross 

cutting issues that affect the governance, legal, financial or 
reputational interests of the Council. Operational or service specific 

risks are captured within Service Group Risk Registers in 2021-22 
Service Group Business Plans.   
 

3.2. Alongside the business planning process in 2021 CMT developed 
the council’s 2021-2022 Strategic Risk Register. All risks included in 

Risk Registers are identified in line with the council’s Risk 
Management Strategy and are aligned to the council’s priorities – 
The Great Eight.   

 
 

 
 

Page 30



3 

 

 
3.3. Summary of Risk Scores currently in Strategic Risk Register 

 
 

 

   3 

  1 2 

   1 

    

 

  

3.4. As at the end of the first half of 2021-22 (30 September 2021), there 
are 7 risks in the council’s Strategic Risk Register.  Of these 7 risks, 

5 have a risk score between 12 and 16 (RAG rated as High, Red).  
The remaining 2 risks have a score between 6 and 12 (RAG rated 

as Medium, Amber). These 7 strategic risks, are listed below: - 
 

 Infectious disease outbreaks -including Coronavirus (16). 

 Cyber security (16). 

 Inability to deliver minimum service levels/statutory service 

levels as a result of a business interruption/emergency 
incident (16). 

 Financial resilience (12). 

 Stability and capacity of workforce and maintaining a strong 

organisational culture (12). 

 Impact of climate change (9).  

 Effective governance and decision making (8). 
 

3.5. An update on all the risks contained in the council’s Strategic Risk 

Register is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

3.6. Changes to the Strategic Risk Register 
 
During the first half of 2021-22 there have been no risks removed or 

added to the Strategic Risk Register. All strategic risk scores have 
remained constant since the last report presented to Audit and 

Accounts Committee on 30 July 2021. 
 

 
4. Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that Audit and Accounts Committee Members: 
 

a) Note the contents of the Half-year 2021/22 Strategic Risk Register 

update attached at Appendix 1. 
    

 

Likelihood 

  
  
  

  
  

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

Page 31



4 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Risk Management Strategy and Process 

        2021-22 Service Group Business Plans 
   Corporate Performance Framework       

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
The risks contained in the register relate to many areas of Council risk. Where an 
equality risk has been identified it will be highlighted in the update report. 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
This is contained in the Risk Register attached. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  
Risk Management is a statutory requirement and a key part of the Council’s 

corporate governance.

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Risk Management is aligned to the council’s financial planning process. Risk 
management processes are considered within existing budgets to manage the risk or 
contingency plans can be implemented should any risks be triggered.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Risk management is aligned to the council’s procurement processes. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Risk Management is aligned to the council’s HR policies and processes. 
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 
The impact of climate change is integral to the council’s risk management approach.  

The Council has also introduced a Climate Change Board which reviewed the 
council’s Climate Change Action Plan and this is also supplemented by subgroups 
which will focus on difficult challenges. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
All Service Groups have been consulted. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Jacquie Russell, Assistant Director, Strategy and 

Performance  

TEL NO:    0161 793 3558 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  ALL 

 
 

 
 

Page 32



1 
 

 

 

 

 

Salford City Council  
 

 

 

2021-22 Strategic Risk Register  
Half-year update  
 

 

The Strategic Risk Register is a tool for capturing important information about the council’s risks and is a continual process that is 

closely aligned to the council’s corporate performance framework. The Strategic Risk Register is used by Members and senior 

officers to identify and manage risks facing the Council and in particular the key risks to delivery of the council’s priorities – The 

Great Eight. 

 

 

 
 

 

Appendix 1 

P
age 33



2 
 

SCCSRR.001 Financial Resilience 
                      Risk Owner: 
                       Assigned to: 

Debbie Brown 
Joanne Hardman 

If financial resilience is weakened then the council may have inadequate resources to meet service demands and priorities, inadequate reserves to respond to financial risks and may be unable 
to set a legal, balanced budget. As a result, the appointed auditor may issue a qualified report, a s114 notice may be issued, spending may be suspended and government may step in to 
administer the council's functions. Furthermore, if the nature and interrelation of financial risks is not fully understood, then the council w ill make poor financial decisions, leading to inefficient 
use of resources.  
 
If not carefully managed in partnership with Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) there is a risk that implementation of recommendations from 'The White Paper - Integration and 
Innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all' might undermine long established, well embedded local partnership working and unravel existing arrangements that work 
well for Salford, including participation in the pooled / integrated funds. This could result in an inability to deliver the ambitions outlined in our Salford Locality Plan and / or other city-wide 
strategies.  
 
Financial resilience is the ability of the council to withstand financial strain arising from various causes including changes to local authority funding, increasing demand for services, higher costs, 
loss of income sources, an increasingly complex delivery landscape and changes in the economy overall. An unprecedented event such as the Covid19 pandemic can bring the full range of 
these risks to bear on the council’s financial position. There is no single indicator of overall risk to financial resilience, but CIPFA has identified a number of areas which should be scrutinised, 
focusing especially on the adequacy of reserves, the consequences of borrowing, vulnerability to social care cost increases, the ability to raise funds other than from government sources and 
vulnerability to changes in the business rates retention system. The council has identified signifi cant risks in each of these areas.   

Existing Controls 

The council's  financial planning arrangements include preparation by the finance team of detailed financial forecasts, based on the best available information and including prudent assumptions 
based on professional judgement and external advice. These forecasts are built into the council's strategies as follows:  

 a balanced budget to put into effect the council's service plans for the forthcoming year, matched by available funding and including a risk assessment of the adequacy of general reserves.  
 a medium-term financial strategy (MTFS) to set out how the council will fund Salford's ambitions and priorities over the next three years, including the identification of any budget gap in 

order for opportunities to reach a balanced position to be identified and assessed.  

 a risk-based approach to the use of reserves, identifying appropriate reserve levels and ensuring that reserves are not depleted without first identifying a strategy to restore them to risk-
assessed levels during the MTFS period.  

 a treasury management strategy to manage the council's cash flows, including an investment strategy focused on the security of principal sums and a borrowing strategy to manage interest 
payable and other charges.  

 a capital strategy that prioritises capital investment programmes, identifies the financial impact of investment in schemes and limits the amount of unsupported borrowing to be taken.  
 
Budget monitoring, comparing actual performance against approved budget, is undertaken throughout the financial year and reported to service management teams, the Corporate 
Management Team, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Where services are experiencing budget pressures, focussed ‘deep dives’ are undertaken and reported to members. The 
impact of pressures and any recovery activity is reflected within outturn forecasts enabling a strategic, corporate response. Where a residual deficit is forecast, a number of actions will be 
explored including: -  

 use of any service or non-specific underspends to offset pressures elsewhere within the budget  

 accessing external funding ensuring compliance with any funding conditions  
 use of reserves  

 use of general balances  

 review of spend and identification of potential savings  
A risk assessment is a critical element in the review of these options. Alongside the work undertaken to balance the annual budget, any ongoing impact on the MTFS will be explored with the 
strategy being updated and reported to CMT and members.  
In order to ensure that decision making is based on sound financial information the finance team, working with service groups, ensures that the council’s accounts appropriately and accurately 
reflect activity and commitments.  
 
 

P
age 34



3 
 

Health and Care Reform:  
Existing partnership working arrangements for integrated commissioning are well embedded across the system  
Locality leaders are fully engaged in discussions for health and care reform  
All partners are engaged in the new transition to ICS arrangem ents including the newly established ICS Transition Board and various workstream delivery groups   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

Annual budget setting process culminating in Council approval of annual budget, MTFS, treasury management strategy and capital strategy.  
Accuracy of budget monitoring and forecasting when compared to outturn position.  
Review of main financial systems and processes by internal audit  
Annual audit of the statement of accounts by external auditor.  
 
Health and Care Reform:  
ICS Transition Board and Programme Reports through existing governance channels  
Reports through existing governance channels   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

None identified.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 12 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 29 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 Monthly monitoring against savings targets and budgets help the 
Council to identify any slippages in its savings programme as early as 
possible.   

Likely 3 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 12-May-2021 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

Estimates included in 2021/22 budget monitoring reports indicate an in-year balanced budget position. The forecast 
position will continue to be reviewed and updated for the remainder of the financial year.  
Work is continuing to develop the 2022/23 revenue budget and capital programme along with the Medium -Term Financial 
Strategy to 2024/25. Whilst an initial budget gap for each year has been identified, government announcements relating 
to the implementation of fair funding, business rates reform and reset and grant funding will potentially have a significant 
impact which will be reflected in revised financial projections. It is anticipated that the council’s settlement will be 
confirmed in December with the council using the intervening period to identify opportunities for savings and investment 
in services. To date, two joint Cabinet/Corporate Management Team sessions have focussed on the budget with a further 
session scheduled for December.  
The financial implications and revised financial arrangements of health reform sit within a finance workstream which 
involves partners from health and the council. The impact of changes upon the council’s integrated fund arrangements 
will be reflected in overall budget discussions.   

P
age 35



4 
 

SCCSRR.002 Stability and capacity of workforce and maintaining a strong 
organisational culture 

                      Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Debbie Brown 
Sam Betts 

If the council does not have a motivated and engaged workforce with sufficient capacity and capability to deliver and support the delivery of services for our residents at the right time in a 
flexible, integrated and place-based way it will impact upon ability to deliver services. As we move to a new operating model, if we do not engage with staff and ensure our culture remains 
resilient, this may lead to instability of the workforce, creating a negative im pact on the ability of staff to do their job and maintain the effective delivery of services. This will result in increased 
demand for more specialist services, resident dissatisfaction at the service level provided and impact upon employee engagement and wellbeing.   

Existing Controls 

 Strong organisational values embedded across the whole organisation.  
 Wide range of employee engagement forums through the Salford 100, staff equality groups, Senior Leadership Team, Exchange Network, Virtual Manager Network and the trade unions to 

ensure staff voice at all levels across the council.  

 MyWork programme to develop modern fit for the future working practices, workplaces and workspaces co-designed with managers and staff across the council.  
 Targeted recruitment campaigns and different approaches for more difficult to fill posts using appropriate tools and social media.  

 Developing our talent pipeline through work placements, apprenticeships, undergraduate and graduate programmes working closely with our partners at Salford College and Salford 
University. 

 Flexible recruitment campaigns and approaches to attract a diverse candidate pool able to be deployed to appropriate roles as demands arise i.e. test, track and trace.  

 Maximising the opportunities provided through apprenticeships to upskill the current and future workforce.  
  #Leading Salford leadership framework and development programme to ensure that we recruit, develop and retain leaders with the right skills and behaviours to operate effectively.  
In addition to the control measures detailed above additional measures have been implemented to ensure capacity to continue to deliver and support the delivery of essential services during the 
global pandemic. Work is ongoing to ensure that the council has the right people in the right place to continue to deliver essential services for our residents. A range of new approaches have 
been introduced to enable us to do so including: creation of talent pools; fast track recruitment process; continuous social media posts and campaigns to drive external interest to current 
vacancies for essential services; fully virtual recruitment and selection implemented; virtual induction resources developed; established the resourcing hub; and support for all staff using digital 
tools and technologies.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

None currently identified - requires further consideration   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

A more informed approach to workforce planning based on an understanding of future workforce skills requirements   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 12 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 15 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 Through a squad working approach the council continues to make 
progress with significant change programmes across all three service 
directorates utilising the Salford Way change methodology. The 
MyWork programme continues to support the return to workplace - 
which is the Council's approach to enabling people to work smarter 
reducing unnecessary travel and supporting place-based working.  

Likely 3 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 12-May-2021 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

P
age 36



5 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update HR and OD work closely with service directorates to redesign services 
in response to public service reform, new and emerging technologies 
and new ways of working. Ensuring appropriate workforce 
development plans are in place to ensure we have people in the right 
place with the right skills maximising the opportunities that the 
apprenticeship levy provides.   

 Redesigning services and developing new ways of working utilising new and emerging technologies.  

 Introducing new ways of working, reshaping roles to meet current and future need and developing leadership 
capability to effectively lead in a changing environment. 

  Ensuring appropriate workforce development plans are in place to ensure we have people in the right place with the 
right skills maximising the opportunities that the apprenticeship levy provides.  

 Introducing a key workforce development programme to develop the digital skills and capabilities of our workforce 
and enable people to fully utilise the new and emerging technologies avai lable. This programme has been rapidly 
deployed in a virtual way to support the transition of a significant proportion of the workforce to remote workers in 
response to the pandemic.  

 Utilising the council's network of Digital Eagles to support individuals  and teams to stay connected, collaborate and 
work effectively maximising the capabilities of the available digital tools and technologies.  

 Through our established Salford Way change methodology progress has been with developing the Council's new 
operating model using the learning from the last 12 months for positive change to how, when and where we work to 
improve services and employee and resident experience. This new hybrid approach is built on the key MyWork 
principle that work is something that you do and the outcomes that you deliver and not just somewhere that you go. 
The model provides the flexibility of working from the most appropriate place for what people are working on whether 
that be home, office or a different setting across the city or out in communities.  

  Continued focus on maintaining high levels of engagement in the development of the future operating model whilst 
maintaining strong sense of team, our values and the Spirit of Salford.  

 Workforce communications and engagement to remain a priority with different approaches and mechanisms to 
maintain staff morale, motivation, engagement and wellbeing.  

 Focussing on employee health and wellbeing through early intervention and prevention, reducing health risks and 
intervening early to improve employee wellbeing and in turn increase attendance. Additional wellbeing support and 
resources have been introduced in response to the specific circumstances as a result of the changes to how and 
where we work including safe homeworking and working practice health checks (in line with the HSE DSE 
requirements), the introduction of an Employee Assistance Programme, a network of health and wellbeing 
ambassadors available to provide one-to-one support, development of a range of online tools and hints and tips to 
support people to stay safe and well and lead remote teams.  

 Development of an inclusive leadership masterclass has recently been commissioned for summer 2021 which will be 
a key requirement for all Salford leaders going forwards and work is also underway to look at strengthening data and 
intelligence to build a greater understanding of the workforce to inform the diversity and inclus ion strategy and 
associated action plans for the Council and Directorates.   

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 37



6 
 

SCCSRR.003 Infectious disease outbreaks (including Coronavirus) 
                      Risk Owner: 

Assigned to: 
Dr Muna Abdel Aziz 
Dr Muna Abdel Aziz 

Salford faces a risk from infectious diseases outbreaks (including vaccine preventable disease, emerging and new diseases) which could involve los s of life, severe demand pressures affecting 
essential services and may also result in issues of community cohesion.   

Existing Controls 

GM Multi-agency Outbreak Plan and in particular the Greater Manchester High Consequence Infectious Disease (HCID) Plan in place.  
GM COVID 19 Outbreak Plan and Salford COVID 19 Outbreak Management Plan.  
Salford Health Protection Board.  
NHS England/Public Health England/Salford City Council joint work on screening and immunisation – includes targeted work to increase uptake.  
Emergency plans and pandemic plans in place.  
National command and control arrangements and comms via Public Health England.  
Business continuity plans in place.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

The Salford COVID19 Outbreak Management Plan sets out the arrangements in place to prevent, control and reduce transmission of the virus, to protect the vulnerable, to prevent increased 
demand on health care services, and to address health protection, infection control and environmental health associated impacts which will support the city’s social and economic recovery. 
Delivery of this Plan is led by the Director of Public Health and the monitoring of the Outbreak Plan will be the initial responsibility of the Health Protection Board.  
Infection control messages and personal protection for staff and the public.  
Business continuity plans to be activated.  
Wider businesses, schools, community organisations business continuity (where affected).  
Advice on mass gatherings.  
Treatment/vaccination (which may not be available in the short term) to protect contacts and to control the outbreak. 
   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

There are many infectious diseases that can be prevented through vaccination. Rates of people receiving their vaccinations is dropping in Salford so we are keen to promote vaccination uptake 
with members of the public throughout the year and catch-up campaigns.  
New diseases represent a global challenge like Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) and the Ebola outbreak that is still ongoing in the Congo.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 16 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 19 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 Following the COVID19 outbreak emergency plans and pandemic 
plans came into effect.  
The pandemic is on an unprecedented scale, depth and duration and 
we are not out of the emergency response phase yet. Initial de-briefs 
are underway to ensure we learn the lessons from the initial few 
months. The full de-brief and learning is unlikely for another 18 

Likely 3 Very Likely 4 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 21-Feb-2020 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2021 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

P
age 38



7 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update months.  
In Salford, a strategic coordinating group (SCCG) was established 
using the existing corporate management team, with the inclusion of a 
number of additional senior people from public health, the Salford 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (SCCG) and others, which met 
daily. Resources and structures at a GM level have also been utilised.  
The Council has a number of workstreams focused on recovery, over 
the short, medium and longer term. These are being incorporated into 
a COVID-19 recovery action plan which will be regularly reviewed and 
monitored for progress by the Salford COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery 
Coordinating Group. Each of those workstreams has a strategic officer 
lead and reports into both the Council’s Corporate Management Team 
and the relevant Cabinet Member.  
Council Governance and decision making has been adapted to 
continue to provide effective leadership and oversight, making best 
use of digital communications for meetings.   

This risk remains high as rates of COVID-19 have been increasing recently, and the release of restrictions from 19 July 
coincided with the peak of the fourth wave in Salford. Rates have remained as high as they have been during previous 
waves, and we continue to advise precautionary approach with COVID secure arrangements in place as part of the 
Health and Safety duty in all settings.  
The outbreak management plan was updated in March 2021 and to be updated ahead of winter to incorporate flu 
vaccinations and COVID booster, return to schools and universities, and the health protection  risks wider than COVID are 
being considered under the remit of the Health Protection Board.  
No change as we head into winter with high COVID rates and other viruses circulating.   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 39



8 
 

SCCSRR.004 Cyber security 

                      Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

 

Debbie Brown 
Steven Fry; Debbie 
McCarron 

Cyber Security (CS) is a term used to define measures taken to protect against threats to security through accidental circumstances, actions / events or through deliberate attack.  
If sufficient measures are not in place to combat the risk of threats that can originate from the internet, corporate networks, maintenance activities, software upgrades and unauthorised access 
etc. this has the potential to result in incident that will have a m ajor impact on the City Council's ability to operate and deliver services.   
 

Existing Controls 

At present the following measures are in place:  
Protective monitoring: 
 All PCs, Laptops and Servers on the Council’s IT network are protected by Virus Protection Systems, which are controlled centrally by ICT and cannot be disabled.  

 All incoming mail is scanned automatically by 2 separate systems to ensure that it does not contain viruses or malware.  

 Multiple layers of firewall are in place on all external connections to the Council’s network, preventing unauthorised access to data and systems.  
 All systems that are accessible from outside the Council, such as the Customer portal, are located in a special area of the network that is separated from the main Council network.  

 Regular penetration tests are carried out on all external access points to the Council’s network to ensure unauthorised access cannot be achieved.  
 JANet who provide our internet services to schools has dedicated security and network teams that have expertise in dealing with DoS attacks. As well as investigating incidents targeted at 

them, they assist customers when they are targeted.  
Threat hunting: 

 Deep Security by Trend Micro is deployed which delivers automated server protection through host-based security controls, including anti-malware, intrusion prevention (IPS), firewall, 
integrity monitoring, application control and log inspection.  

 Structural modification – inspecting links and data within documents/emails for malicious code attempting to redirect unsuspecting users. These links can be manipulated before onward 
delivery.  

Vulnerability management: 
 Micro segmentation – the ability to logically segment parts of our Server Infrastructure ensuring a single compromised host does not impact the rest of the Infrastructure.  

 Access Layer segmentation – Lateral communication is prevented at Layer 2 to mitigate virus/malware movement at the network layer, so device independent.  
Cyber Threat Intelligence: 
 In Office 365 we are leveraging O365 threat analytics while they are on and off premise for indicators of compromise with the user account and device objects.  
Organisational awareness: 

 User awareness – regular communication with end users highlighting the risks to staff and users to always question what they receive and whether to open files. The first line of defence is 
often employee education. Investment in mandatory e-learning and organisational development around digital skills is being widened.   

Security Operations Centre: 

 Security Operations Centre (SOC) in partnership with Home of Skills and Technology (HOST) and Microsoft. This provides d edicated monitoring, analytics and threat detection across the 
whole end point and infrastructure estate. This coupled with the existing controls provides 24/7 enhanced protection.  Roll out of multi factor authentication.  

 

Existing Controls - Assurances 

 Business impact assessment  

 Business continuity plan  

 Disaster recovery plan  
 ISO27001 accreditation 

 3 Yearly rolling internal audit plan   
 

P
age 40



9 
 

Gaps in Existing Controls 

  
 
 

Original Risk 16 Current Risk 16 Target Risk 12 Latest Update 15 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 The council’s Data Protection Officer (DPO) has been actively 
involved in providing guidance across the council in respect of data 
sharing to ensure that effective arrangements were implemented in 
line with the Information Commissioner’s Office to deliver best 
outcomes for people in Salford.  
Covid-19 has seen an increase in phishing and network attacks. 
Heightened security measures and policies have been im plemented 
and will continue to be closely monitored.   
  

Very Likely 4 Very Likely 4 Likely 3 

Risk Identified 04-Dec-2019 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

Roll out of multi factor authentication across directorates and 3-year cyber roadmap in draft. 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 41



10 
 

SCCSRR.005 Impact of climate change 
                   Risk Owner: 

Assigned to: 
John Searle 
Jim Wensley 

All the current science and empirical evidence suggests that climate change is leading to increasing frequency of severe weather, be that high rainfall and flooding or heatwaves. Salford is as 
vulnerable to these types of event as  the rest of Greater Manchester and the region.  
Failure to deliver on climate change initiatives, particularly around the reduction in the use of energy and carbon, within the required timescales impacting on achieving long term carbon 
reduction targets will have medium- and long-term climate change risks to residents, business and infrastructure. In the short-term inaction will result in reputational damage.   

Existing Controls 

The City already has in place Civil Contingency plans to react/respond to events as they happen, working with the whole range of civil agencies (SRR.006) in the Strategic Risk Register).  
The Council has declared a climate emergency and we have in place a suite of Greater Manchester and Salford City Council Policies to drive change across the City to react to the climate 
change threat.  
Salford City Council is committed to the GM 5 Year Environment Plan (March 2019) – which includes immediate mitigation and adaptation measures and further innovation measures needed to 
meet the challenge of Climate Change and meeting a science-based target for the City of Carbon Neutrality by 2038. This requires on average a 15% annual reduction in emissions.  
We have organised Salford's Climate Change work so that it reflects GM's five-year Environment Plan of which Salford's Climate Action Board are in place to oversee progress against delivery.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

The Salford Strategic Flood Forum enables different parts of the city council and relevant external partners to discuss flood risks and mitigation opportunities within the city, in addition to 
continuous joint working with relevant partners. The flood forum receives regular updates on the implementation of Salford's Local Flood Risk Management Strategy which contains a num ber of 
measures designed to mitigate flood risk within the city. One of the main measures completed in recent years was the construction of an additional flood storage basin at Castle Irwell.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

  

Original Risk 6 Current Risk 9 Target Risk 4 Latest Update 26 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Serious  3 Serious  3 Significant 2 The Place Directorate is currently reviewing existing City and GM 
policies and action plans in this area and working to define a delivery 
plan with aligned resources to enable the City to respond to the 
Climate Change threat and our s tated aim of achieving carbon 
neutrality by 2038.  
The city council takes its responsibilities regarding flooding very 
seriously. As an example, applications for new development in flood 
risk areas are carefully scrutinised to ensure that the development 
proposals are safe, in line with the city council's development and 
flood risk supplementary planning guidance. Developing approaches 
to biodiversity and greening through the city should reduce the impact 
of urban heat islands during heat events.  
In the event that a major flooding incident occurs emergency planning 
procedures are in place and staff are trained to respond. The training 
includes knowledge of the operational procedures of the flood basins 

Unlikely 2 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 11-Feb-2020 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

We have organised Salford's Climate Change work so that it reflects GM's five-year Environment Plan of which Salford's 
Climate Action Board are in place to oversee progress against delivery.  
In addition, climate change is a theme running through recently developed strategies including Salford's Housing Strategy 
and Inclusive Economy Strategy.  
The climate action board was established to bring stakeholders from across the council and external organisations to 
oversee projects and programmes associated with meeting the city's carbon neutral target. The council has also 

P
age 42



11 
 

established subgroups of the board to progress detailed work on various themes, these include:-  

 Our homes - Reducing carbon emissions from homes by retrofitting and reducing heat demand.  
 Our buildings - Reducing carbon emissions and heat demand from existing and new commercial and public 

buildings.  

 Our green infrastructure - Increasing biodiversity and managing green and blue infrastructure sustainably. Increasing 
investment and engagement in the natural environment.  

 Culture change and engagement - Encouraging positive engagement and behaviour change and raising awareness 
of programme and impact.  

Further actions for improvement will be identified as the subgroups pull together their action plans.   

and communities most at risk within the city. The response to major 
incidents can include opening rest centres to accept those displaced 
by flooding and assisting with the recovery phase.  
The emerging approach to retrofit should reduce the risk of excess 
summer and winter deaths in the event of extreme weather events.  
Following the declaration of a climate emergency by Salford City 
Council in 2019 the council introduced a Climate Action Board which 
reviews the council’s climate change action plan. This is now being 
supplemented by sub-groups which will focus on difficult challenges. 
The level of home retrofit required to meet the target in the 5 Year 
Environment plan are extremely challenging.  
The roll out of Carbon Literacy Training to all staff will assist in the 
identification of climate change risks and opportunities at an 
individual, team and service level.  
Consideration is also now being given to the Covid-19 lockdown 
experience to see how the council can maintain changed behaviours 
that have contributed to better air quality, reduced pollution and less 
congestion.   

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 43



12 
 

SCCSRR.006 Inability to deliver minimum service levels/statutory service levels as a 
result of a business interruption/emergency incident 

                   Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

John Searle 
Jeanette Staley 

Business continuity risk - Should an emergency or major incident occur, there is a risk that the council may not be able to deliver key services as a  result - loss of staff/loss of buildings/loss of IT 
infrastructure/loss of power due to unplanned interruption.  
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic there is a potential risk that the council may not be able to maintain delivery of council services / vibrancy of the city.   

Existing Controls 

The Council has a statutory requirement under Civil Contingencies Act to maintain a risk register on emergencies, with a pandemic being one of those risks. Responsibility sits at a Greater 
Manchester level, and the risk register can be found on the GM prepared website. This sets out mitigation plans that are in place.  
A Salford Emergency Response and Recovery Plan is also in place. The Plan is regularly exercised through various scenario planning and desk top multi -agency exercises. On call is in place 
via a weekly on call system of bronze, silver and gold officers. The local resilience forum is still meeting quarterly.  
Business Continuity - The council has a business continuity corporate plan, as well as directorate/service-based business continuity champions, business impact analysis and business 
continuity plans. BIAs (Business Impact Assessments) have been completed and Business Continuity plans have been written. A test of our Business Continuity arrangements will be run. The 
Business Continuity Champions are still meeting quarterly.  
Brexit - The council has conducted a Brexit impact assessment and a Brexit mitigation plan. During the no deal period the council was running 2 weekly Brexit meetings with business continuity 
champions, where we would review and update our plans in line with current government guidance/changes. The Brexit plan is being kept up to date, continue to share government guidelines 
across the council and continue to meet as a Brexit group quarterly (as part of the Business Continuity Champions). We have been doing regular checks in relation to HGV driver/fuel shortage. 
No impacts seen so far in relation to this in Salford. COVID-19 – the council has a full command and control structure to manage the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic and mitigate as far as 
possible the effects on Salford's residents, businesses and communities.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

For the actions we would take in the event of a business interruption incident, please refer to the corporate business continuity plan and the directorate business continuity plan relevant to the 
incident. For the actions we would take in the event of Brexit affecting SCC (Salford City Council) or the wider City, please refer to the actions contained within the Brexit plan and/or the SCC 
emergency response and recovery plan. For the actions we would / are taking in relation to COVID-19 please refer to the COVID-19 Outbreak Management Control Plan and the Recovery Co-
ordinating Group Recovery Plan. For the actions we would take in relation to an Emergency Incident please refer to our emergency response and recovery plan.  
Our emergency planning and business continuity plans are regularly tested (whether that be through exercising or through live inciden ts). Any learning we gain from these are debriefed and put 
back into plans retrospectively.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

  

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 16 Target Risk 4 Latest Update 19 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Significant 2 Following the COVID-19 outbreak the council has made use of its 
existing business continuity arrangements and its emergency 
preparedness which has been tested to the full.  
The council followed the guidance from government that all of those 
who could work from home should do so. Through the business and 
risk processes, it was able to establish those who could work from 

Likely 3 Very Likely 4 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 11-Feb-2020 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

P
age 44



13 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update home. They were provided with advice, support and where necessary 
equipment to enable them to work from home. Throughout the first 
three months of the pandemic, GOLD has met daily, reducing to three 
times a week, and then once a week during June. Since September it 
has met twice a week and is still running on this schedule. All silver 
and bronze meetings (cells) are still operating and stood up - their 
frequency depends upon the COVID circumstances at the time. Risks 
and actions are captured for all meetings and are being collated into a 
timeline documenting our response.  
The Chief Executive as chair of GOLD, reports regularly to the City 
Mayor. Regular meetings take place with other portfolio holders to 
ensure democratic oversight.  
The impact of COVID-19 is likely to be felt by the Council, its citizens 
and its partners for some time. The Council has developed a COVID-
19 Recovery action plan which is regularly reviewed and monitored for 
progress by the Salford COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery Coordinating 
Group. This plan has not been built into directorate business plans. 
The Council is part of a wider Greater Manchester approach to "Build 
Back Better" after the pandemic.  
Due to the ongoing situation in relation to COVID-19, risk scores 
remain changeable and will be reviewed on a monthly basis.   

The council and its partners on the resilience forum continues to respond to the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic as well as 
maintain our BAU (Business as usual) activity. There have been a number of (relatively minor) emergency incidents that 
our on-call arrangements have responded to as well as managing the ongoing pandemic. In addition to this the country 
as a whole is starting to see the impacts of Brexit with examples of HGV and Fuel Shortages. As referenced above 
Salford has not seen this impact yet but it is monitoring this closely. Furthermore as we head into winter, our resilience is 
likely to be tested due to weather related issues and pressure on the NHS (and therefore the Local Authority by 
extension) around multiple illnesses (COVID and Flu concurrently) The risk rating is still accurate given the emergency 
climate we are currently operating in.   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

P
age 45



14 
 

SCCSRR.007 Effective governance and decision making 

Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

 

Debbie Brown 
Joanne Hardman/David 
Wilcock/Iolanda Puzio 

If we do not have and operate an effective and agile governance framework coupled with strong strategic and political leadership, then we will be unable to ensure we have appropriate decision- 
making arrangements in place which would affect our ability to meet statutory requirements to make decisions in a proportionate, transparent and lawful way.  
Failure to meet these fundamental principles of good corporate governance at the Council or indirectly through a range of delivery models and partnership working leads to loss of public and 
business confidence in the organisation, reputational or financial loss and a diminution in our ability to operate as an effective and respected public authority and leader of place.   
 

Existing Controls 

There are a range of active and complementary controls in place. The Constitution of the Council is the bedrock of good governance. It is kept under review by the Monitoring Officer and it is 
updated at least annually to ensure it continues to be relevant to the needs of the Council. In addition there are quarterly or more frequent meetings of the Governance Group whose primary 
responsibility is to prepare and have the oversight of delivery of the Annual Governance Framework and improvement plan.  
More broadly, the Council has in place a Code of Corporate Governance which is approved annually by the Audit Committee following engagement with the Council’s Corporate Management 
Team (CMT), the City Mayor and the Cabinet so that there is senior accountability and ownership. The same process is followed annually for the Annual Governance Statement, which is a 
documented assessment of how the Code is being operated at the Council.  
The Council has robust arrangements for executive decision-making, which are embedded and communicated. Items for decision are developed and challenged in an appropriate way with input 
from professionally qualified officers and CMT where necessary as well as lead member input. Delegated executive decisions are carried out through a mature scheme of delegation and 
decisions are taken and published in a transparent way. The scheme of delegation is contained in the Constitution and understood by members and officers. Operation of the scheme is 
overseen by the Committee Services Team.  
 
The Council has well-established arrangements for scrutiny which are member-led and supported strongly by officers. The O and S Committee and the Panels have agreed annual work 
programmes and as well as making recommendations to the City Mayor and the Council’s CMT on service improvement and executive decision-making throughout the year, they produce an 
annual report to Council summarising activity and impact of scrutiny activity in the previous year. The Audit Committee is chaired by a member of the opposition which is in line with CIPFA good 
governance practice.  
 
Independent assurance of the Council’s arrangements is provided by internal auditors, external auditors and external regulatory oversight for example Ofsted and Care Quality Commission.  
There are established arrangements and Codes of Conduct for officers and members which are widely communicated and followed. Annual learning and development on the code of conduct 
takes place for new members as well as existing members of the council. Member development is overseen by a member working group who contribute to and sign off an annual member 
development programme.  
 
The Council delivers some of its activities through partnerships with the public and private sector as well as through Council-controlled corporate vehicles. These are documented appropriately 
and are supported directly or indirectly by senior officers of the Council and elected members.  
  

Existing Controls - Assurances 

The Constitution of the Council, Schemes of Delegation and the publication of decisions, forward plan of key decisions, compliance with the data publication regime, Code of Corporate 
Governance, Corporate Governance Group, Annual Governance Statement, Codes of Conduct, Standards Committee chaired by an Independent Member, Audit Committee, Scrutiny 
Committee and Panels, Member and Officer learning and development, Register of Interests, Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy, Whistleblowing Policy, Disciplinary Procedures, Annual Report of 
the Standards Committee, risk control framework, registers and reporting arrangements, Internal and External Audit.   
 

Gaps in Existing Controls 

Further assurance is needed that the delivery of the Council’s functions through alternative vehicles and through partners is scrutinised appropriately and that there are the necessary 
transparency and accountabilities in place. There is scope to expand the remit of the Governance Group so it has a m ore holistic view of the governance landscape at the Council.   

P
age 46



15 
 

 

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 8 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 29 Oct 2021 

   

Next Assessment 03-Jan-2022 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 This risk is being tolerated at its current risk rating (8) which is in line 
with the target set. However, the risk is not being closed so we can 
keep continued focus and visibility.  

Likely 3 Unlikely 2 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 12-May-2021 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2021 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

Risk assessed and reworded, existing controls, assurances and gaps updated and scores updated to reflect current level 
of risk.   

 P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE 

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 26th JANUARY 2022 

 

TITLE: Internal Audit Progress Report (November 2021 – January 2022) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to consider the contents of the 

report. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 

resources utilised by Internal Audit during 2021/22, the activities undertaken in the 
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 Audit & Accounts Committee reports  

 Internal Audit’s management information systems 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: See appended report. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Internal audit projects are managed within the Unit’s risk 

based audit protocols aimed at giving assurance regarding the management of the 
City Council’s key business risks. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Supplied by: Melinda Edwards, Principal Solicitor  

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 

have a sound system of internal control which: 

a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 

and objectives; 
b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 

effective; and 

c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/IIA) requires an 

authority’s chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality assurance and 
improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The 

quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 
external assessments. Internal assessments include the ongoing monitoring of the 
performance of the internal audit activity.  

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the resources utilised by Internal 
Audit, the activities undertaken in the reporting period, and the status of work 

currently being undertaken.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Simon Bleckly, Head of Internal Audit 

The audit plan is funded from within the revenue budget and there are no additional 
financial demands resulting from this report.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement Manager.  

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Catherine Sharples HR Manager 

Page 50



 

There are no known HR implications arising from this report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: None 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith, Internal Audit Manager, Ext. 6969 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 

  

Page 51



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 1 
 

INTRODUCTION 

This report provides Members of the Audit & Accounts Committee with details of the 
resources utilised by Internal Audit and outcomes, including work reported in this period, 

work currently being undertaken and new work commenced. 

AUDITS COMPLETED AND REPORTS ISSUED 

Table 1 below summarises the four audits that have been finalised since the last progress 

report to Audit and Accounts Committee, and the corresponding number of agreed actions 
and overall level of assurance provided for each of those audits.   

Summary Reports have been provided to Committee Members for each of these reviews.  

Table 1: Reports Issued  

Audit  
Number of agreed actions and priority Level of 

Assurance  Critical High Medium Low Total 

Members’ Allowances & Payments - 1 1 - 2 High 

Accounts Payable - - 6 - 6 Satisfactory 

St Andrew’s CE Primary School 
(Boothstown) 

- 2 6 - 8 Satisfactory 

St Edmunds RC Primary School - 1 9 - 10 Satisfactory 

Total:  - 4 22 - 26  

Any level of assurance given to each audit is a balanced judgement based upon the 
established system of controls, the subject’s approach to risk management, and the nature 

of any recommendations made and actions agreed. See Table 3 at the back of this report 
for explanations of the different levels of assurance. 

Actions are classified over the categories of critical, high, medium, and low. See Table 4 at 

the back of this report for explanations of the different levels of priority.  

The agreed actions are designed to improve the control environment and/or improve ‘value 
for money’ within the client’s area of responsibility and we can report that the actions made 
in this period have been agreed by management. 

Our audit reports include an action plan that records the detail of our findings, the agreed 
action that management intend to take in response to these findings and the timescale to 
undertake such action. This provides a record that progress can be measured against when 

we undertake our Post Implementation Reviews or follow-up work.  

POST IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW 

Internal Audit undertakes Post Implementation Reviews (PIRs) of services or systems that 
have been subject to an audit and received a ‘Limited’ level of assurance.  

We have included information below summarising the one PIR that has been finalised in 
this period.  

The information includes the number of agreed actions and the number of those actions 

now implemented or outstanding. It also provides an indication of the direction of travel 
regarding the overall level of assurance.   

Page 52



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 2 
 

More detailed Committee Summary reports have been provided to Committee Members for 
each of these ahead of this meeting.  

St Thomas of Canterbury RC Primary School 

Actions 
Priority Direction of Travel 

Critical High Medium Low Total Audit Indicative 

Agreed - 5 10 -  

Limited High Implemented - 4 10 -  

Outstanding - 1* 0 -  

*_The school is implementing the new practice, but it is too early to consider it embedded.  

Guidance notes: 

 The timing of a PIR is determined by the agreed implementation dates, detailed within 

the original audit report, and is generally undertaken within six months of the audit. 

 PIRs only confirm the action taken to resolve the issues highlighted within our report and 
do not check that the rest of the control framework remains as robust as it was at the 

time of our original review. 

 The PIR can take the form of an actual site visit by Internal Audit to verify the 
implementation of agreed recommendations or alternative follow-up, for example the 

client undertaking a self-assessment of implemented recommendations and reporting 
their outcomes to Internal Audit. 

 The summaries include an indicative assurance ‘direction of travel’ following the Post 

Implementation Review. This provides a measure of the value added through the 
implementation of the agreed actions within our reports. It shows the level of assurance 
that we may expect we would now be able to provide if we undertook a full audit again. 

It takes into account the action taken to address matters raised in our original report. 
However, it should be noted that this is indicative only and may not reflect the actual 

current position. 

  

Page 53



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 3 
 

OTHER WORK 

This section details other work completed by the audit team during the period. 

Assurance Work (Reporting)  

Work on the audit plan is noted in Table 2 at the back of this report.  

Draft reports have been issued in the following areas: 

 Placement Approval Process (Children & Young People) 

 Early Help    

 Mesne Lea Primary School  

 Ellenbrook Primary School Holiday Club 

Information Governance and Data / Digital  

We provide ongoing assurance and consultative support to the council’s continued 

compliance with the requirements of: 

 ISO 27001 

 Payment Card Industry 

Supporting Squads, Transformation and Change 

Internal Audit is currently involved in ‘squads’ supporting: 

 Payroll: providing consultancy advice or independent assurance as/when our input is 
appropriate, currently in relation to ongoing developments with the arangments for 

making contribution payments to providers and new developments with timesheet 
administration.  

 Project Imagine (Replacement system for CareFirst): providing consultancy advice or 
independent assurance as/when our input is appropriate. 

 Homes England Affordable Housing Programme: A working group was established to 

prepare the council for its Homes Englang audit. A positive outcome was achived 
providing assurance that the aspects examined are operating well.   

Resources 

 Some audit fieldwork / reporting is less efficient than ‘normal’ due to the ongoing impact 
of the pandemic on the council’s services / auditees’ capacity.  

 There are new rounds of the Covid-19 business grants in response to the Omicron 
variant and ongoing assurance work on all Track and Trace isolation payments.  

 Sickness levels have increased during the autumn. In addition, a team member has been 
on maternity leave, returned in November but as part-time. These leave a shortfall in 
available days and we are reviewing the options available to the service.    

  

Page 54



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 4 
 

Internal Investigations & Corporate Counter Fraud 

The Internal Audit Team continues to be available to support the business with internal 
investigations, providing technical skills and advice when called upon and managing the 

whistleblowing hotline / online referrals.  

The following table has been updated to provide a more complete overview of allegations 
and other contacts through the council’s counter-fraud webpage, referral hot line, or direct 

contact, for the financial year-to-date. 

Type of Allegation or Contact Number 

Investigation - Counter Fraud Team (external) 29 

Investigation - HR (IA Support/Advice) 2 

Investigation - Internal Audit (internal) 4 (+3) 

Investigation - Service / Manager (IA Support/Advice) 5 (+1) 

NFA - Insufficient Info. 15 

NFA - No concerns 6 

NFA - Service Matter 3 

Referred - Council Tax / Business Rates 7 

Referred - DWP 6 

Referred - Environmental Health 2 

Referred - Housing  2 

Referred - Other Service 2 

Referred - Trading Standards 4 

Other   1 

Notes 

1. Figures in brackets indicate the increase / new cases since the last reporting period. 

2. Whilst the above matters have either been referred in to Internal Audit or Internal Audit 

advice sought, not all fall within the definition of “whistle blowing” or necessarily relate to 
fraud, bribery or corruption, and no indication of the outcome of investigations is implied.   

3. Internal refers to work force matters. External refers to members of the public, for example, 
single person discount fraud. 

The Counter Fraud Team is still spending most of its time on assurance work around the 
various COVID-related grants and payments. It is hoped that the Team will be able to return 

to its regular responsibilities before the end of the year. The next National Fraud Initiative 
exercise is due to commence in December (Council Tax Single Person Discount to Electoral 
Register) and the results from this will be used to inform the direction of work for the Team. 

  

Page 55



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 5 
 

Collaboration 

 We have ongoing practitioner representation on sub groups of the North West Heads of 
Internal Audit Groups, the groups have been established to share good practice in audit 

across the region: 

o Contract Audit Group 

o IT Audit Group (chair) 

o Schools Audit Group (chair) 

o Fraud Group 

 The Internal Audit Manager is a member of CIPFA’s North West Audit Risk and 
Governance Group, which organises training and development events for public sector 

auditors within the region.  

 The Head of Internal Audit attends the North West Chief Audit Executive Group 
meetings, is a member of  the Local Authority Chief Auditors Network and chairs the 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Operational Group. This enables the identification 
and sharing of best practice nationally in respect of internal audit and counter fraud. 

 

  

Page 56



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 6 
 

Table 2: Audit Plan 2021/22 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK      

Governance Arrangements / AGS ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Risk Management and Assurance Framework ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Information Governance ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Transformation, Change & Squads Support  ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

SERVICE REFORM (general)      

Housing Benefits Service Redesign (bf) Q1/Q2 11/08/21 19/10/21 High  

Member Allowances and Payments (bf) Q2/Q3 06/09/21 10/11/21 High  

Gifts & Hospitality  Q3 06/10/21 TBC TBC Finalising/Reporting 

Business Interests  Q3 06/10/21 TBC TBC Finalising/Reporting 

Key Decisions Q3/Q4 TBC TBC TBC 
Reactive work requested by the monitoring 
officer.   

Contract Management Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ah hoc reviews as/when requested 

Agency Workers (bf) TBC     

Modern Slavery (bf) TBC     

Statutory Returns - Data Integrity & Resources (bf) TBC     

SERVICE REFORM (grants & compliance work) 

Greaves Trust Q3/4  n/a TBC TBC Planning 

Transport – Bus Subsidy Q2  n/a 27/09/21 Validated Annual  

P
age 57



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 7 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

Other ad-hoc grants (contingency) TBC    None requested to date 

SERVICE REFORM (core financial systems)      

Payroll (Payments & Pay Overs) Q3 17/08/20 09/08/21 High   

Accounts Payable 2019/20 (bf) Q1 19/02/21 23/12/21 Satisfactory    

Budgetary Control  TBC    Planning 

Main Accounting System (bf) TBC     

Treasury Management TBC     

Service Reform (information technology and digital) 

Data Centre (Physical and Environmental Security)  Q4     

Asset Management   TBC n/a TBC TBC Reporting  

PCI Compliance Ongoing     

ISO 27001 Ongoing    
Part of a 3 year cycle of work assisting with the 
accreditation process 

JCAD TBC    
Consultancy assessment completed. Site 
visit/testing delayed by Covid-19   

SAP Access Control Q4     

Data Analytics  Q4    Fieldwork pending data 

Consultancy support:  

 Information Strategy 

 Project Imagine (CareFirst system replacement) 

 SOC Support 

 Civica Pay 

 

 

Ongoing 
 
 

n/a 

 

 

n/a 

 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

P
age 58



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 8 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

PLACE      

CCTV Control Room (ISO Compliance) Q1 n/a 07/04/21 Validated   

Major Projects – University & Crescent Programme 

Governance 
Q2/Q3 15/10/21 n/a n/a 

On hold at client’s request – Potentially 

resuming Q1 2022/23 

Commercial Estate Management Q3 20/09/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork / Nearing completion 

Construction Services (Inventory) Q3/Q4 08/12/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Land Transactions Q3/Q4     

Health & Safety  Q4     

Derive Q4     

PEOPLE      

Project Imagine Governance (2 months prior to go live) Q1 28/06/21 27/07/21 High  

Welfare Rights & Debt  Advice Service (bf) Q1 12/08/20 18/06/21 Limited  

Personal Budgets (Children & Families) (bf) Q1 20/08/19 20/09/21 Limited  

Helping Families (GM Troubled Families) Q2/Q3 15/07/21 22/10/21 High  

Early Help and The Bridge Partnership Q2/Q3 15/07/21 TBC TBC Finalising / Reporting 

Meeting Demand & Service Resilience (Post covid-19)  Q2/Q3 29/07/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Placement Approval Process (children) Q3 15/10/21 TBC TBC Reporting 

Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service Q3/4 18/10/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Client Charging Policy (bf) / SCO Q3/4 TBC TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Personal Budgets & Direct Payments (Adults) / SCO Q4 TBC TBC TBC Planning underway with the SCO 

Home Care / SCO Q4    Possibly Q1 2022 due to delays with access 

Care Homes (Provision of Places) 

 
Q4     

P
age 59



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 9 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

PEOPLE (Establishments)      

Children’s Homes (ongoing schedule of visits) TBC    On hold due to Covid-19 / Site visits 

Schools Financial Value Standard Q4/Q1 n/a n/a n/a Initial communications sent 

Brentnall Primary School Q1 n/a 04/05/21 High  

Moorfield Primary School (PIR) Q2 n/a 02/08/21 Limited *  

Westwood Park Primary School Q2  n/a 20/10/21 Satisfactory  

St Thomas of Canterbury (PIR) Q3 n/a 13/12/21 High*   

St Edmund’s RC Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a 10/01/22 Satisfactory  

St Andrew’s CE Boothstown Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a 24/11/21 Satisfactory  

Ellenbrook Primary School (Holiday Club) Q3 n/a TBC TBC Fieldwork compete / Reporting 

Mesne Lea Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a TBC TBC Fieldwork compete / Reporting 

Springwood Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

Clifton PRU Q3/Q4 n/a    

Light Oaks Junior Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

St Mary’s RC Swinton Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

Mossfield Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

Godfrey Ermen Memorial CE Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

St Paul’s CE Nevile Road Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

River View Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

St Mark’s CE Worsley Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

St Charles RC Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a    

 * Indicative level of assurance, based on the progress made since the original audit review

P
age 60



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 10 
 

Table 3: Levels of Assurance 
 

Level of 
Assurance 

DESIGN: Findings DESIGN: Opinion EFFECTIVENESS: Findings EFFECTIVENESS: Opinion 

High Appropriate procedures and 

controls are in place to 

mitigate the key risks. 

There is a sound system of 

internal control designed to 

achieve objectives. 

No or only minor exception 

found in testing of procedures 

and controls. 

The controls that are in place 

are being consistently 

applied. 

Satisfactory In the main, there are 
appropriate procedures and 

controls in place to mitigate 

the key risks reviewed, albeit 
with some that are not fully 

effective. 

There is generally a sound 
system of internal control 

designed to achieve 

objectives, but with few 
exceptions. 

A small number of exceptions 
found in the testing of 

procedures and controls. 

There is evidence of non-
compliance with some 

controls, which may put 

achievement of some of 
operational objectives at risk. 

Limited 

 

A number of significant gaps 

identified in the procedures 
and controls in key areas. 

The system of internal 

controls is weakened by 
some significant gaps. 

A number of reoccurring 

exceptions found in testing of 
the procedures and controls. 

There is poor compliance 

with controls and procedures 
which may put operational 

objectives at risk of not being 

fully achieved. 

Minimal For all risk areas there are 

significant gaps in the 
procedure and control. This 

will affect the effectiveness of 

organisation’s overall control 
framework. 

Overall, there is a poor 

system of internal control in 
place.  

Due to the absence of 

effective controls and 
procedures, no reliance can 

be placed on their 

effectiveness. 

There is a substantial non-

compliance with controls and 
procedures or compliance 

with inadequate controls and 

procedures, which will likely 
put the council’s objectives at 

significant risk of not being 
achieved. 

P
age 61



Internal Audit Progress Report  
January 2022 

Page 11 

 

Table 4: Priority of Actions 
 

Priority Rational 

Critical Critical issue that could have a significant impact on a key system, function, or process objectives, and also the council's 
objectives. 

High  Control weakness that could have a serious impact on a key system, function, or process objectives. 

Medium Control weakness that could have an impact on the achievement of a key system, function or process objectives or an 
issue, which, if addressed, would contribute towards raising the standard of internal control. 

Low Minor control weakness that does not have an impact upon the achievement of a key system, function or process 

objectives. Implementation of the recommendation would strengthen the control framework and/or improve compliance 
with existing controls. 

 

  

P
age 62



External Audit Progress Report

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 10



2

1. Audit Progress
2. National publications

P
age 64



Section 01:
Audit Progress

P
age 65



4

Audit Progress
Background

This section provides the Committee’s January 2022 meeting with updates on:

• progress in delivering the 2020/21 audit work; and

• the 2021/22 audit planning process.

2020/21 Audit

The position on the key elements of the audit are as follows:

• Financial Statements Audit – our Audit Completion Report was presented at the Committee’s October 2021 meeting. We have not yet issued the audit opinion as there is an 
outstanding issue relating to the accounting treatment of the pension liability for social care staff who transferred across the NHS Trust as part of the integration of health and 
social care services.   

• Value for money arrangements – as summarised in our Audit Completion Report we anticipate having no significant weaknesses in arrangements to report in relation to the 
arrangements that the Council has in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Our work is not yet complete and we have requested some 
supporting evidence from the Council.

• Other auditor responsibilities – we have not needed to take any action in relation to any of our broader auditor responsibilities.

We have not yet issued the Audit Certificate for 2020/21, which formally closes the audit because the value for money and whole of government accounts (WGA) work is 
outstanding. We expect the National Audit Office to confirm their WGA requirements in January 2022 and will update the Committee at its meeting.   

2021/22 Audit

At this stage we do not expect any significant changes to the audit risk profile and the overall audit approach, and we have not identified any significant changes to the financial 
reporting requirements under the 2021/22 CIPFA Code. The operating and financial environment for councils continues to be challenging and it is important our audit plan is 
properly tailored to the risks and issues. We will hold further planning discussions with management to identify any opportunities for improvement for 2021/22. We will share our 
2021/22 Audit Strategy Memorandum with the Audit and Accounts Committee.   

P
age 66



Section 02:
National publications

P
age 67



12 January 2022 6

National publications
Publication/update Key points

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)

1. New Prudential and Treasury Management Codes These two statutory and professional codes are important regulatory elements of the capital finance framework 
within which local authorities operate.

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

2. Consultation on changes to the capital framework: 
Minimum Revenue Provision

This consultation seeks views on proposed changes to regulations to better enforce the duty of local authorities 
to make prudent Minimum Revenue Provision each year.

National Audit Office (NAO)

3. 
The Government’s preparedness for the COVID-
19 pandemic: lessons learned for government on 
risk management

The report sets out central government’s risk analysis, planning, and mitigation strategies prior to the arrival of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, with the aim of drawing out wider learning for the government’s overall approach.

4. The Local Government finance system in England: 
Overview and Challenges

This overview looks at what local government in England spends, how this spending is funded and the effect of 
changes in recent years. It draws on relevant findings from past NAO work.

5. Departmental Overview 2020/21: Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

This provides a summary of the Department’s spending in 2020/21, its major areas of activity and performance, 
and the challenges it is likely to face in the coming year.

6. Cyber and Information Security: Good practice 
guide

Audit committees should be scrutinising cyber security arrangements. This guidance complements government 
advice by setting out high-level questions and issues for audit committees to consider.

Financial Reporting Council

7. Inspection findings into the quality of major local 
body audits The findings show an improvement on the previous year but the timeliness of reporting was a concern. 

P
age 68



7

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA
1.  CIPFA publishes new Prudential and Treasury Management Codes, December 2021

CIPFA has published the new Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code) and Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice 
and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code) following a consultation period. These two statutory and professional codes are important regulatory 
elements of the capital finance framework within which local authorities operate. Local authorities are required by regulation to 'have regard to' their provisions. Guidance 
notes will follow shortly in the new year.

The updated Prudential Code includes the following as the focus of the substantive changes: 

• The provisions in the code, which present the approach to borrowing in advance of need in order to profit from additional sums borrowed, have been strengthened. The 
relevant parts of the code have augmented to be clear that borrowing for debt-for-yield investment is not permissible under the Prudential Code. This recognises that 
commercial activity is part of regeneration but underlines that such transactions do not include debt-for yield as the primary purpose of the investment or represent an 
unnecessary risk to public funds.

• Proportionality has been included as an objective in the Prudential Code. New provisions have been added so that an authority incorporates an assessment of risk to 
levels of resources used for capital purposes.

The main changes to the updated Treasury Management Code and the accompanying guidance for local authorities are as follows:

• Investment management practices and other recommendations relating to non-treasury investments are included within the Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) 
alongside existing TMPs.

• The guidance will recommend the introduction of the Liability Benchmark as a treasury management indicator for local government bodies (note that CIPFA has issued a 
toolkit to assist local authorities with the production of this indicator).

• Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) risks are incorporated into TMP1 (Risk Management) rather than a separate TMP 13.

• The purpose and objective of each category of investments should be described within the Treasury Management Strategy.

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-issues-new-prudential-and-treasury-management-codes

P
age 69

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-issues-new-prudential-and-treasury-management-codes


8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
2.  Consultation on changes to the capital framework: Minimum Revenue Provision, December 2021

This consultation seeks views on proposed changes to regulations to better enforce the duty of local authorities to make prudent Minimum Revenue Provision each year.

Local authorities borrow and invest under the Prudential Framework (the Framework), which comprises legislation and 4 statutory codes that authorities must have regard 
to. Under this system, authorities have wide freedoms to borrow and invest without the need to seek the government’s consent, provided that borrowing is affordable. The 
intent of the Framework is to make sure local decisions are prudent, affordable and sustainable.

The government is aware that some authorities employ practices that are not fully compliant with the duty to make a prudent revenue provision, resulting in underpayment of 
MRP. This was reported in the NAO’s report Local Authority Investment in Commercial Property (February 2020) and the subsequent report by the Public Accounts 
Committee in July 2020, which recommended the government take steps to address the issue.

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-revenue-provision/consultation-on-changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-
revenue-provision#excluding-specific-debt-from-mrp-determination

P
age 70

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-revenue-provision/consultation-on-changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-revenue-provision#excluding-specific-debt-from-mrp-determination


12 January 2022 9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
3. The Government’s preparedness for the COVID-19 pandemic: lessons learned for government on risk management, November 2021

In November 2021

This report sets out the facts on:
• the government’s approach to risk management and emergency planning (Part One);
• the actions the government took to identify the risk of a pandemic like COVID-19 (Part Two);
• the actions the government took to prepare for a pandemic like COVID-19 (Part Three); and
• recent developments (Part Four).
The report sets out central government’s risk analysis, planning, and mitigation strategies prior to the arrival of the COVID-19 pandemic, with the aim of drawing out wider 
learning for the government’s overall risk management approach.

The report concludes that this pandemic has exposed a vulnerability to whole-system emergencies – that is, emergencies that are so broad that they engage the entire 
system. Although the government had plans for an influenza pandemic, it did not have detailed plans for many non-health consequences and some health consequences of 
a pandemic like COVID-19. There were lessons from previous simulation exercises that were not fully implemented and would have helped prepare for a pandemic like 
COVID-19. There was limited oversight and assurance of plans in place, and many pre-pandemic plans were not adequate. In addition, there is variation in capacity, 
capability and maturity of risk management across government departments.

The pandemic also highlighted the need to strengthen the government’s end-to-end risk management process to ensure that it addresses all significant risks, including 
interdependent and systemic risks. This will require collaboration on risk identification and management not only across government departments and local authorities, but 
also with the private sector and internationally. For whole-system risks NAO states that the government needs to define its risk appetite to make informed decisions and 
prepare appropriately so that value for money can be protected. NAO state that the pandemic has also highlighted the need to strengthen national resilience to prepare for 
any future events of this scale, and the challenges the government faces in balancing the need to prepare for future events while dealing with day-to-day issues and current 
events.

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-governments-preparedness-for-the-covid-19-pandemic/

P
age 71

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-governments-preparedness-for-the-covid-19-pandemic/


12 January 2022 10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
4. The Local Government finance system in England: Overview and Challenges, November 2021

This overview looks at what local government in England spends, how this spending is funded and the effect of changes in recent years. It draws on relevant findings from 
past NAO work.

The overview aims to enhance financial transparency about local government in England. It covers:

• An introduction to local government funding

• Government policy and actions since 2010

• Some results or consequences of these changes.

The report headlines include the following in respect of the impact of the changes implemented by government on councils:

• Rising social care spending has squeezed funds available for non-social care services, yet rising spend has not prevented concerns about social care, and projections 
suggest continued cost and demand pressures.

• Local authorities have made substantial spending reductions in some services and sought to maximise revenue funding from other sources. Some local authorities have 
sought to maximise revenue available for services in ways that may reduce financial resilience. Commercial property investment strategies have increased some local 
authorities’ exposure to risk. Local authorities now rely more on sources of income that are dependent on local economic conditions.

• A lack of short-term funding certainty hampers local authorities’ ability to plan. Local authorities are also planning and delivering services amid medium-term financial 
uncertainty. Financial uncertainty does not support value-for-money decision-making.

• The governance mechanisms that support decision-making about financial sustainability are under strain. The financial resilience of the local government sector was 
being tested, even before the COVID-19 pandemic

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-local-government-finance-system-in-england-overview-and-challenges/

P
age 72

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-local-government-finance-system-in-england-overview-and-challenges/


12 January 2022 11

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
5. Departmental Overview 2020-21: Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, November 2021

This provides a summary of the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities’ spending in 2020/21, its major areas of activity and performance, and the 
challenges it is likely to face in the coming year, based on the insights from NAO’s financial audit and value for money work.

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-2020-21-department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities/

6. Cyber and Information Security: Good practice guide, October 2021

Audit committees should be scrutinising cyber security arrangements. To aid them, this guidance complements government advice by setting out high-level questions and 
issues for audit committees to consider.

The guide provides a checklist of questions and issues covering:

• The overall approach to cyber security and risk management;

• Capability needed to manage cyber security; and

• Specific aspects, such as information risk management, engagement and training, asset management, architecture and configuration, vulnerability management, identity 
and access management, data security, logging and monitoring and incident management.

The guidance is based on NAO previous work and our detailed systems audits, which have identified a high incidence of access-control weaknesses. It also provides links 
to other government guidance and NAO resources.

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/report/cyber-security-and-information-risk-guidance/

P
age 73

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-2020-21-department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/cyber-security-and-information-risk-guidance/


12 January 2022 12

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Financial Reporting Council
7. Inspection findings into the quality of major local body audits, October 2021

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published in October 2021 its inspection findings into the quality of major local body audits in England (which includes large 
health and local government bodies) for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

The FRC reviewed 20 major local audits performed by six of the largest audit firms and found 6 (30%) required improvements. This is an improvement on the prior year 
inspection results where 60% of audits inspected required either improvements or significant improvements.

The FRC found that the firms have taken action in response to previous findings, however, the timeliness of auditor reporting was disappointing. 

The FRC concluded that for Mazars: 

• 100% of the financial statement audits reviewed were assessed as either good or limited improvements were required; and

• 100% of the value for money arrangements work reviewed was assessed as good. 

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.frc.org.uk/news/october-2021/frc-publishes-latest-major-local-audit-quality-ins

P
age 74

http://www.frc.org.uk/document-library/audit-quality-review/2021/major-local-audit-inspection-results-2021
https://www.frc.org.uk/news/october-2021/frc-publishes-latest-major-local-audit-quality-ins


Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Director: Karen Murray

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars
Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup
WeChat:
ID: Mazars

Contact Follow us:

Senior Manager: Cath Andrew

Email:  cath.andrew@mazars.co.uk

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Updated 10.01.22 

 
Audit and Accounts Committee  

Work Programme 
2021/22 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 

Meeting Date 

 

Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

23 June 2021 1. Annual Report of the Chair 
2. Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit 

3. 2020-21 End of Year Strategic Risk Register update (end of year update 

presented in June every year)  
4. Strategic Risk Register 
5. Code of Corporate Governance deferred to July 
6. Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Annual Report 
7. Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2021/22 
8. Internal Audit Progress Report 

9. Part 2 – current investigations update 
10.  

Chair/Simon Bleckly 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

/Jacquie Russell 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

David Smith 

Shoaib Mohammad 

David Smith 

21 28 30 July 
2021 

1. Code of Corporate Governance (deferred from June) 
2. Draft Annual Governance Statement  
3. Draft Statement of Accounts  
4.Urban Vision Transition – 12 month review (deferred from June) 

5. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register (following presentation of new Risk  Register, a 

half-year and end of year progress update will be presented in October 2021 and June 
2022. In between these reports ad hoc requests on risks can be presented to the 
Committee if required). 

6. Risk Management Strategy update (following this review of the Strategy, reviews 
will be presented every two years, in March) 

7.. RIPA Annual Report deferred to September 
8. External Auditors: 

 Audit Committee Update and External Audit Fee Letter 

 Going concern report 
9. Part 2 – current investigations update 

Dave Wilcock/ Simon Bleckly 

Dave Wilcock/ Simon Bleckly 

Joanne Hardman 

Shoaib Mohammad 

Emma Reid/Jacquie Russell 

 

Dave Wilcock 

 

Mazars 

 

David Smith 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 11



Updated 10.01.22 

22 29 September 
2021 

1. Annual Governance Statement – moved to October 
2. Audited Statement of Accounts – moved to October 
3. Internal Audit Charter 
4. Internal Audit Quality and Improvement Programme 
5. RIPA Report (deferred from July) 
6. External Auditors Update  
7. Government response to the Redmond Review 
 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

Joanne Hardman 

Monitoring Officer/ Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Dave Wilcock 

Mazars 

Simon Bleckly 
20 27 October 
2021 

1. Private meeting for committee with External Auditors 
2. Annual Governance Statement (for signing off) 
3. Audited Statement of Accounts 
4. External Auditors - Audit Committee Updates and Annual Audit Letter  
5. Internal Audit Progress Report 
6. Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption update report 
7. The effectiveness of the distribution of Covid Grants/Loans and impact of Covid 

on the Council Budget  
8. Part 2 – current investigations update 

Mazars 

Joanne Hardman 

Dave Wilcock/Simon Bleckly 

Mazars 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

 

 

David Smith 
19 26 January 
2022 

 

 

 

1. Training Session: Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee  (How the Committee adds value to the Council) 
including briefing on the Self Assessment Exercise (David Smith/Simon Bleckly) 

2. Private meeting for committee with Internal Auditors (Simon Bleckly) 
3. Annual Audit Letter (Mazars) 
4. External Auditors -  Audit Committee Update (Mazars) 
5. External Audit Contract Procurement (Joanne Hardman/Simon Bleckly) 
6. Opting-in to Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) (Joanne Hardman) 
7. Update on the provisional budget settlement (Joanne Hardman) 
8. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register Update (Jacquie Russell & Debbie McCarron) 
9. Public Interests Report (to be rescheduled) (Iolanda Puzio/Simon Bleckly) 
10. Internal Audit Progress Report  
11. Part 2 – Current investigations update (David Smith)  

 
16 23 March 2022 1. Self Assessment Exercise (Assessment) (David Smith/Simon Bleckly) 

2. Audit and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference (David Smith) 
3. External Auditors - Audit Committee Update, Grants Certification Letter and Audit Plan (Mazars) 
4. Internal Audit Strategy and Draft Internal Audit Plan (Simon Bleckly) 
5. Internal Audit Progress Report (David Smith) 
6. Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit (Simon Bleckly) 
7. Public Interests Report (to be rescheduled) (Iolanda Puzio/Simon Bleckly)? 

8. Part 2 – current investigations update (David Smith) 

P
age 78



Updated 10.01.22 

 Abeyance List  
 Introduction to the use of RIPA   
 CIPFA Training -role of the Audit Committee   
 Risk Management and the Assurance Framework – Training Session   
 Apprenticeship Levy Update  
Councillors (8) 

 Robin Garrido (c) 

 Roger Jones 

 Mike Pevitt 

 Gina Reynolds 

 Alexis Shama 

 Phil Tresadern 

 John Walsh 

 1 x vacancy (Labour) 

 

Co-opted Members (2) 

Vittoria Bugana (01.06.20 – 31.05.23) 
Edoardo Bucci (21.10.20 – 20.10.23) 

 

Invitee 

 Councillor Bill Hinds - Lead Member for Finance & Support Services  

 

Quorum - 3 (Members)  

 

Officers 

David Wilcock –  Interim City Solicitor 

Peter Openshaw – Acting Strategic Director for Place 

Simon Bleckly – Head of Internal Audit (from April 2021) 

Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer 

David Smith - Internal Audit Manager 

Chris Hesketh - Head of Financial Management 

Tony Thompstone - Strategic Finance Manager 

 

Cath Andrews – Mazars  

Karen Murray - Mazars 

 

 

 

  

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FOR FACE TO FACE MEETINGS FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2021
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting.
	6 External Audit Contract Procurement and Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA)
	7 Provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23
	8 2021/22 Strategic Risk Register Update
	Appendix 1 - Strategic Risk Register

	9 Internal Audit Progress Report
	10 External Auditors Audit Committee Progress Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13

	11 The work programme

